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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of United
Electronics Company

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of United Electronics Company (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) as at 31 December 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and other standards and
pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants
(“SOCPA”).

What we have audited
The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2022;

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards), endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia (the “Code”), that is relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code’s requirements.

Our audit approach
Overview

Key audit matters Expected credit loss allowance against investment in Islamic financing
contracts

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risk of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates
that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in
all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including
amount other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, License No. 25,
Al Hugayet Tower, P.O. Box 467, Dhahran Airport 31932, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
T: +966 (13) 849-6311, F: +966 (13) 849-6281, www.pwc.com/middle-east
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of United
Electronics Company (continued)

Our audit approach (continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit

matter

Expected credit loss allowance against investment
in Islamic financing contracts

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross
investment in Islamic financing contracts was
Saudi Riyals 2.3 billion against which an expected |q
credit loss (“ECL”) allowance of Saudi Riyals 72.5
million was maintained.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Upated our understanding of accounting
policy adopted and methodology applied by

management in the ECL model to

The determination of ECL involves significant fletermme _the ECL a119wance for

management judgement. The key areas of investment in Islamic financing contracts

judgement used by management to determine the and ~ compared them against the
ECL include: requirements of IFRS g.

o Categorisation of receivables into stages 1, 2 0r |s  Evaluated and tested the design,

3 based on the identification of: implementation and the operating

(i) exposures with a significant increase in effecti\{eness _of key controls over the ECL
credit risk  (“SICR”) since their model including:
origination; and (i) governance and approval of key
(ii) individually impaired / defaulted assumptions used;
exposures. (ii) classification of exposures into stages
1, 2 or 3, criteria for identification of
e Assumptions used in the ECL model for SICR and the determination of
determining probability of default (“PD”), loss individually impaired / defaulted
given default (“LGD”) and exposures at default exposures; and
(“EAD”) including but not limited to the e . . .
expected future cash flows, changes from (iii) integrity of data inputs into the ECL

assumptions used in the prior year, developing model.

and incorporating forward looking

information, macroeconomic factors and the |®

associated scenarios and expected probability
weights in line with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standard 9
‘Financial Instruments’ (“IFRS 9”).

Assessed, for a selected sample of Islamic
financing contracts, the appropriateness of

the staging classification and
management’s computation of ECL
allowance.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of United
Electronics Company (continued)

Our audit approach (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit

matter

We considered ECL against investment in
Islamic financing contracts as of 31 December
2022 as a key audit matter in view of the
judgements involved and consequently the
associated audit risk around ECL calculations.

Refer to the significant accounting policies in
Note 2.25 for the impairment of financing
contracts; Note 3 which contains the disclosure
of critical accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions relating to impairment losses; and

Involved our specialists to assist us in
reviewing model calculations, evaluating
interrelated inputs and assessing the
reasonableness of assumptions used in the
ECL model including those used to determine
PD, LGD and EAD including but not limited
to actual past performance, expected future
cash flows, changes from assumptions used in
the prior year, macroeconomic variables,
forecasted macroeconomic scenarios and
probability weights.

Notes 15 and 30 which contain the disclosures of . .
impairment losses, impairment allowance |° Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the

assessment methodology, credit quality analysis, consolidated financial statements.
key assumptions and factors considered in
determination of ECL.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information
included in the Group’s 2022 annual report, (but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report of the Group, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of United
Electronics Company (continued)

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, and the
applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, i.e. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of United
Electronics Company (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
(Restated -
Note Note 32)
Sales and services 5,609,070 5,486,759
Income from Islamic financing contracts 421,996 346,869
Total revenue 4 6,031,066 5,833,628
Cost of revenue (4,766,002) (4,649,978)
Gross profit 1,265,064 1,183,650
Selling and distribution expenses 5 (556,338) (538,038)
General and administrative expenses 6 (183,824) (167,288)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 15 (40,755) (25,498)
Other expenses (4,372) (4,509)
Other income 7 42,478 16,813
Finance charges 8 (50,107) (37,771)
Profit before zakat and income tax 472,146 427,359
Zakat expense 25 (34,413) (27,357)
Income tax credit (expense) 25 2,441 (3,168)
Net profit for the year 440,174 396,834
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligations 23 ik 1,287
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 59 (120)
Other comprehensive income for the year 136 1,167
Total comprehensive income for the year 440,310 398,001
Earnings per share (Saudi Riyals)
Basic earnings per share 28 5.85 5.37
Diluted earnings per share 28 5.50 4.96

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements including notes and other explanatory information were

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2023 and were signed o by:
m Mohammed Galal Ali Abduljabbar
Mohammed Khalil Fahmy AbdulRahman
Mohammed
AlAbduljabbar
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director Chairman of the Board of
and Chief Executive Directors
Officer



UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated statement of financial position

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Net investment in finance leases
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Trade and other receivables

Investment in Islamic financing contracts
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Net investment in finance leases

Trade and other receivables

Investment in Islamic financing contracts
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnings
Treasury shares

Net equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred revenue from extended warranty program
Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Employee benefit obligations

Total non-current liabilities

Note

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
11
14
15
17

18
19

29

21
22
20

23

As at 31 December
2022 2021
495,134 447,102
451,185 423,769
46,908 10,988
54,565 54,850
529 529
6,395 4,808
894,032 748,424
1,048,748 1,690,560
1,079,632 1,202,517
2,095 648
129,794 116,719
663,162 464,604
146,669 173,158
2,021,352 1,957,646
__3,970,100 3,648,206
800,000 600,000
64,158 69,481
3,657 15,404
327,136 339,672
(55,651) (32,000)
1,139,300 992,557
126,433 108,808
573,319 519,061
401,667 603,340
- 1,243

79,090 73.875
1,180,509 1,306,327
(Continued)



UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note As at 31 December
2022 2021

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 690,155 1,115,414
Deferred revenue from extended warranty program 21 113,297 86,349
Leasc liabilities 22 28,255 32,984
Borrowings 20 777,384 82,458
Zakat and income tax payable 25 41,200 32,117
Total current liabilities 1,650,291 1,349,322
Total liabilities 2,830,800 2,655,649
Total equity and liabilities 3,970,100 3,648,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements including notes and other explanatory information were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2023 and were signed on their behalf by:

m “ Mohammed Galal Ali Abduljabbar

Mohammed Khalil Fahmy AbdulRahman
Mohammed
AlAbduljabbar
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director Chairman of the Board of
and Chief Executive Directors
Officer
9
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UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated statement of cash flows

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before zakat and income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Property and equipment written-off
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Gain on recognition of net investment in finance
leases
Amortization of intangible assets
Intangible assets written-off
Employee share schemes - value of employee services
Amortization of extended warranty program
Net impairment losses on financial assets
Gain on termination of a lease
Finance income from net investment in finance leases
Finance charges

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in investment in Islamic financing contracts
Decrease (increase) in inventories
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables
Increase in deferred revenue from extended warranty

program

Cash generated from operations

Principal elements of lease payments

Employee benefit obligations paid

Finance charges paid

Zakat and income tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchases of property and equipment
Payments for additions to intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders
Acquisition of treasury shares

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash inflow from financing activities

11

Note

\O ©

10

12
12

21
15

23

23

25

33
29

Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
472,146 427,359
46,887 41,497
743 289
(38) 120
48,971 46,463
(13,635) -
13,148 13,097
- 131
= 6:749
(121,233) (89,562)
40,755 25,498
(6,502) (10,952)
(2,491) (1,888)
77,885 48,988
12,345 12,592
(11,891) (24,344)
(384,921) (435,607)
122,885 (266,899)
(425,200) 142,618
165,806 124,436
35,660 60,585
1,699 -
(7,053) (12,310)
(71,752) (48,169)
(26,813) (17,147)
(68,259) (17,041)
(91,771) (37,201)
(12,863) (11,194)
454 616
(104,180) (47,779)
396,000 510,000
(239,046) (55,021)
1,818,166 1,480,000
(1,488,000) (1,590,000)
(293,567) (230,072)
- (8,000)
(47,603) (53,692)
(2] 21

(Continued)



UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2022 2021

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,489) (11,605)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 173,158 184,763
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 146,669 173,158
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Reversal of lease liabilities on termination of a lease 22 25,997 41,764
Reversal of right-of-use assets on termination of a

lease 10 19,495 31,565
Right-of-use assets recorded against lease liabilities 10 100,600 108,867
Recognition of net investment in finance leases 11 36,575 -
Right-of use assets derecognized against recognition of

net investment in finance leases 10 22,940 -
Remeasurement of lease liabilities against adjustment

to right-of-use asset 22 22,529 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets capitalized to

property and equipment 9,10 4,307 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements including notes and other explanatory information were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2023 and were signed on their behalf by:

Mohammed Galal Ali Abduljabbar AbdulRahman
Mohammed Khalil Fahmy Mohammed AlAbduljabbar
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director Chairman of the Board of
and Chief Executive Directors

Officer
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UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

1 General information

United Electronics Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in Al Khobar
under Commercial Registration (“CR”) number 2051029841 dated 10 Jumada II 1425H
(corresponding to 27 July 2004). The shares of the Company were listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange
on 24 December 2011.

The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 76688, Al Khobar 31952, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
include the wholesale and retail trade in electric appliances, electronic gadgets, computers and their
spare parts and accessories, furniture, office equipment and tools, maintenance and repair services,
third-party marketing and consumer financing services.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include accounts of the Company and its
following wholly owned direct and indirect subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries Country of incorporation
United Company for Maintenance Services (“UCMS”) Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
United International Holding Company (“UIHC”) Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
United Company for Financial Services (“UCFS”) Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Procco Financial Services W.L.L. (“Procco”) Kingdom of Bahrain

United Electronics Company Extra W.L.L. (“eXtra Bahrain”) Kingdom of Bahrain

United Electronics Company Extra L.L.C. (“eXtra Oman”) Sultanate of Oman

Extra Electronics Company (“eXtra Egypt”) Arab Republic of Egypt
Extra for Import (“eXtra Import”) Arab Republic of Egypt

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 54 branches (31 December 2021: 52 branches) out of
which 48 branches are in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (31 December 2021: 47 branches in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incorporated the following wholly owned
subsidiaries which had not commenced commercial activities as at 31 December 2022:

° eXtra Egypt - A limited liability company, with a share capital of Egyptian Pounds 50.0 million
(equivalent to Saudi Riyals 9.6 million) divided into 5.0 million shares of Egyptian Pounds 10
per share. The principal activities of eXtra Egypt as per the underlying articles of association
include wholesale and retail of electronic devices and related repairs, maintenance and other
technical support services.

o eXtra Import - A limited liability company, with a share capital of Egyptian Pounds 2.0 million
(equivalent to Saudi Riyals 0.4 million) divided into 0.2 million shares of Egyptian Pounds 10
per share. The principal activities of eXtra Egypt as per the underlying articles of association
include import and export, wholesale and retail of electronic devices.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Group’s Board
of Directors on 13 February 2023.
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UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Chartered and
Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”).

(1) Historical cost convention

These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except as
otherwise disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

(i11) New standards and amendment to standards and interpretations

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for their reporting period
commencing on or after 1 January 2022.

. Covid-19 - Related Rent Concessions - amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (“IFRS 16”);

° A number of narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’ (“IFRS 3”), IAS 16
‘Property, plant and equipment’ (“IAS 16”), IAS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets’ (IAS 37”) and some annual improvements on IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption
of IFRS’ (“IFRS 1”), IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ (“IFRS 9”), IAS 41 ‘Agriculture’ (“IAS 417)
and IFRS 16; and

o Lessor forgiveness of lease payments (IFRS 9 and IFRS 16).

No material impact was identified upon adoption of the amended standards.

(iv) Standards issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for the 31 December 2022 reporting period and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of the new standards and interpretations on
its financial statements.

2.2 Foreign currencies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals which is the
functional currency and presentation currency of the Company. Each subsidiary in the Group
determines its own functional currency (which is the currency of the primary economic environment

in which the subsidiary operates), and as a result, items included in the financial statements of each
subsidiary are measured using that functional currency.

14



UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Foreign currencies (continued)

(b) Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies other than Saudi Riyals are recognized in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(c) Group entities

The results and financial position of foreign subsidiaries having reporting currencies other than Saudi
Riyals are translated into Saudi Riyals as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that statement of financial position;
(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average exchange rates; and

(iii) components of the equity accounts are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the dates
the related items originated.

Cumulative adjustments resulting from the translations of the financial statements of the foreign
subsidiaries and foreign branches into Saudi Riyals are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When investment in foreign subsidiaries is disposed-off or sold, currency translation differences that
were recorded in other comprehensive income are recognized in profit or loss as part of gain or loss on
disposal or sale.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls
an investee if and only if the Group has:

o power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

° exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

° the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including;:

o the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
o the Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until
the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

° derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

o derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

o derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

o recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

o recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

o recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

o reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive

income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

2.4 Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, except capital work-in-progress which are carried at cost. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life.
Depreciation is calculated on property and equipment (except freehold land) so as to allocate its cost,

less estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Depreciation is charged to the profit or loss.
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2.4 Property and equipment (continued)

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each annual reporting period. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

Assets in the course of construction or development are capitalized in the capital work-in-progress
account. The asset under construction or development is transferred to the appropriate category in
property and equipment, once the asset is in a location and / or condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The cost of an item of capital work-in-
progress comprises its purchase price, construction / development costs and any other directly
attributable costs to the construction or acquisition of an item of capital work-in-progress intended by
management. Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated.

2.5 Leases

The Group assesses at inception of a contract whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group has leases for stores, lands, warehouses and
office buildings where the rental contracts are typically for fixed periods ranging from 1 to 20 years
but may have extension options.

@) The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases
(defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets, for which the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the net present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for

leases held by the individual lessee, which does not have recent third-party financing; and
o makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example term, country, currency and security.
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2.5 Leases (continued)

@) The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed lease payments, less any lease incentives;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or
rate at the commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term reflects the exercise of an

option to terminate the lease.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use asset) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate;

o the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount
rate is used); and

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
arevised discount rate.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement dates, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and future restoration costs, if any. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term or the economic useful
life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the
right-of- use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.
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2.5 Leases (continued)

) The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group applies IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets" to determine whether a right-of-use asset is
impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss. Also see Note 2.20.

(i)  The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the
lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. In such case the lease is a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Group applies IFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract. The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in finance lease.

Lease payments received under operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term as part of revenues.

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are recognized at their fair value. Intangible assets under
development are stated at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Following initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets with
infinite useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for
by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognized in the profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible
asset.
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2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.7 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than it’s carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in the profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

2.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Cost comprises purchase cost and, where
applicable, direct costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realizable value comprises estimated selling prices and such
markdowns are adjusted against the carrying value of the inventories.

Provision is made, where necessary for slow moving and damaged inventories. Cost of inventories is
recognised as an expense and included in cost of revenue.

2.9 Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities

unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.11  Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement; and
fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

o consideration transferred;
o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity; and
° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.12 Employee benefit obligations

The Group provides end-of-service benefits to its employees based on the terms and conditions of the
labor laws applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries, on termination of their employment
contracts.

The employment benefits plans are not funded. Accordingly, valuations of the obligations under the
plans are carried out by an independent actuary based on the projected unit credit method. The costs
relating to such plans primarily consists of the present value of the benefits attributed on an equal
basis to each year of service and the interest on this obligation in respect of employee service in
previous years.

Current and past service costs related to employment benefits are recognized immediately in profit or
loss while unwinding of the liability at discount rates used are recorded in profit or loss. Any changes
in net liability due to actuarial valuations and changes in assumptions are taken as remeasurement in
the other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized directly in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations resulting from the plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service costs. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

2.13 Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and airfare
allowance etc., that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented within accrued employees’ costs under trade and
other payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if any.

The following is a description of principal activities, from which the Group generates its revenue:

(i) In-store retail

The Group operates a chain of retail outlets. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the
Group sells a product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the

customer purchases the product. The Group’s return policy grants customers the right of return
within 7-14 days depending on the type of product with certain requirements and certain exceptions.
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2.14 Revenue recognition (continued)
@) In-store retail (continued)

Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns at the time of sale using the expected value
method. Because the number of products returned has been steady for years, it is highly probable that
a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are reassessed at each reporting date. The Group’s
revenue from retail operations also includes revenue recognized from provision of certain services
incidental to the sale of some of its products, including but not limited to, delivery and installation etc.
Revenue from such services is recognized at a point in time since the associated performance
obligation is satisfied either instantly or within a short span of time.

(i1) Wholesale

The Group also sells its products to other resellers. Revenue is recognized when control of the
products is transferred, being when the products are delivered to the reseller and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the reseller’s acceptance of the products. This type of sale
involves credit terms of 30-90 days and corresponding trade receivables are recognised.

(i11) E-commerce

Sales are also conducted online in the territories where the Group operates through their website and
mobile application. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control i.e., when the products are
delivered to the customers, typically within 3-5 days. Payment of the transaction price is normally
received upon placing online orders and recognized as a liability until the recognition of revenue.

(iv) Prouvision of extended warranty services

The Group provides customers with an option to purchase extended warranty beyond that covered by
the manufacturer for certain products. The contract is separately priced as a distinct service. The
Group accounts for such arrangement as a separate performance obligation service on the basis of the
nature and period of warranty coverage. The Group recognizes the consideration received as a
liability, which is later amortized over the period of warranty.

v) Gift cards

The Group sells gift cards to customers which can be redeemed for goods. The consideration received
from such sales are recognized as a contract liability being a performance obligation and recognized as
revenue when the gift cards are redeemed by the customers. The validity of such gift cards is typically
one year and in case of unredeemed gift cards, revenue is recognized in full upon their expiry.

(vi) Income from Islamic financing activities

Income from Islamic financing contracts including installment sales, Murabaha, Tawarruq and
investment in credit card financing is recognized over the term of the contract using the effective yield
method, by applying the Effective Profit Rate (“EPR”), on the outstanding balance over the term of the
contract. The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the investment in Islamic financing contracts to their gross carrying
amounts. The calculation of effective yield includes transaction costs and origination fees income
received.
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2.15 Cost of revenues

Cost of revenues include actual product cost and the cost of transportation to the Group's distribution
facilities and stores from suppliers. Cost of revenues is reduced by supplier payments that are not
reimbursements of specific, incremental and identifiable costs. Cost of revenues also include the
finance cost associated with Islamic financing contracts.

2.16 Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for
bonus shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted EPS is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value (being proceeds received), net of eligible transaction
costs incurred, if any. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortized cost
using the effective profit rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective profit rate method.

Borrowings are derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

2.18 Zakat and income tax

Zakat is provided for in accordance with Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA”) regulations
applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Income tax for foreign entities is provided for in
accordance with the relevant income tax regulations of the countries where the entities operate and
generate taxable income.

Zakat, for the Company and its local subsidiaries, is calculated based on approximate zakat base and
adjusted net profit and is charged to profit or loss. Additional amounts, if any, are accounted for when
determined to be required for payment.

2.19 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Group's other components. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly
by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
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2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
entities or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in profit or loss. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.21 Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (“treasury shares”), for discharging obligations under the
Employee Stock Option Programme (“ESOP”), are recognised at cost and presented as a deduction
from equity and are adjusted for any transaction costs and gains or losses on sale of such shares. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the treasury
shares. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised
in retained earnings.

2.22 Share-based payment - Employee option plan

Certain employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of equity settled share-based
payments under the ESOP, whereby employees render services as consideration for the option to
purchase fixed number of Company’s shares (“Option”) at a predetermined price.

The cost of ESOP is recognised as an expense in profit or loss, together with a corresponding increase
in other reserves, in equity, over the period during which the vesting service conditions are fulfilled.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted
including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price), excluding the impact of
any service and non-market performance vesting conditions and including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions.
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2.22 Share-based payment - Employee option plan (continued)

The Group has set up an economic hedge by purchasing treasury shares. Accordingly, the share based
payment reserve (representing the cumulative expense arising from ESOP) is transferred into retained
earnings upon expiry of the ESOP, whether or not the options vest to the employees.

The cumulative expense recognised for ESOP at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of options
that will ultimately vest.

When the terms of the ESOP are modified the minimum expense recognised is the expense as if the
terms had not been modified if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of the modification.

When the ESOP is terminated, it is treated as if the options vested on the date of termination, and any
expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting service conditions within the control of either the entity or the employees are not met.
However, if a new ESOP is substituted for the terminated ESOP and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the terminated and new ESOPs are treated as if they were a
modification of the original ESOP.

2.23 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/ non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

2.24 Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are

approved by shareholders of the Company. Interim dividends, if any, are recorded when approved by
the Board of Directors.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Financial instruments

2.25.1 Financial assets

(a) Classification

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

e The Group's business model for managing the asset; and
e The contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate
cash flows. That is, whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets.
If neither of these is applicable (e.g., financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial
assets are classified as part of 'other' business model and measured at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (“FVTPL”).

SPPP: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments' cash flows
represent solely payment of principal and profit (the "SPPP" test). In making this assessment, the
Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
Le., profit includes only consideration for the time value of resources, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement, including the impact of
prepayment and early termination features of the contract. Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.

This classification is based on the business model of the Group for managing the financial assets, and
contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Group's financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost as such assets are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPP.

(b) Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement of Group's financial assets are at amortised cost. Finance income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective profit rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Instances of modifications to the terms
of the Company’s financial assets are rare, considering that the acceptance of modification request from
the customers is at the discretion of the Company except for cases as mandated by Saudi Central Bank
(“SAMA”) regulations. Modifications to the investment in Islamic financing contracts have an
immaterial impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Also see Note 30.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Financial instruments (continued)

2.25.1 Financial assets (continued)

(c) De-recognition of financial assets

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For investments in Islamic financing contracts, the Group applies the three-stage model (‘general
model’) for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition.

Stage 1 (“Performing”) includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-
month expected credit losses (‘ECL’) are recognised and finance income is calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance). 12-month ECL are the
ECL that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. It is
not the expected cash shortfalls over the 12-month period but the entire credit loss on an asset,
weighted by the probability that the loss will occur in the next 12 months.

Stage 2 (“Under-performing”) includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, unless they have low credit risk at the reporting date, but that do
not have objective evidence of impairment. A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
receivable is more than 30 days past due. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognised, but finance
income is still calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime ECL are the ECL that
result from all possible default events over the maximum contractual period during which the Group
is exposed to credit risk. ECL are the weighted average credit losses, with the respective risks of a
default occurring as the weights.

Stage 3 (“Non-performing”) includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 9o days of when they fall due, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-
impaired under IFRS 9. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognised and finance income is calculated
on the net carrying amount (that is, net of credit allowance).

The Group, when determining whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly, since the initial recognition of the financial asset, considers the ‘days past due’ analysis
of each exposure and certain other qualitative factors such as monitoring the forward looking
information about financial difficulties faced by private sector employers of the customers and
nationalization targets for specific industry groups etc. Management considers such analysis to be an
effective and efficient measure of monitoring significant increase in credit risk, without undue cost
and effort, as it enters into Islamic Financing Contracts with individual customers only.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Financial instruments (continued)

2.25.1 Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment (continued)

For trade and other receivables and net investment in finance lease, the Group applies the simplified
approach which requires lifetime expected credit losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. Financial assets are written-off only when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Where financial assets are written-off, the Group continues to engage enforcement activities to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, after write-off, are recognized in
the profit or loss. Impairment losses on financial assets are presented separately on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. For details regarding credit risk
management, refer Note 30.

Financial assets are written-off only when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include amongst others, customers’ failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than 365 days past default and or engage with the
Group’s collection team. Furthermore, all outstanding exposures from deceased customers are written
off immediately.

Where financial assets are written-off, the Group continues to engage enforcement activities to
attempt to recover the receivable due, except for balances written off for deceased customers, which
are immaterial. Recoveries made, after write-off, are recognized in ‘Net impairment losses on
financial assets’ in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on financial assets are presented separately on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. For details regarding credit risk management, refer Note 30.

2.25.2 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

2.25.3 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and net amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements, when the Group has a legally enforceable right, which is not contingent on anything, to set
off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.26 Investment in Islamic financing contracts
~ 2.26.1 Tawarruq financing contracts

Tawarruq is an agreement wherein the Group sells a product to its customer which the Group has
purchased and subsequently to such sale, arranges to sell the underlying asset and pay out the sale
proceeds to the customer. The selling price comprises the cost plus an agreed profit margin. Gross
amounts due under the Tawarruq sale contracts include the total sale payments on the Tawarrug
agreement (Tawarruq financing contracts). The difference between the Tawarruq financing contracts
and the cost of the product sold, is recorded as unearned Tawarruq profit and for presentation
purposes, is deducted from the gross amounts due under the Tawarruq financing contracts.

2.26.2 Murabaha financing contracts

Murabaha is an Islamic form of financing wherein, the Group based on request from its customers,
purchases specific commodities and sells them to the customers at a price equal to the Group’s cost plus
profit, payable on deferred basis in installments. The difference between the Murabaha sale contracts
receivable and the cost of the sold asset, is recorded as unearned Murabaha profit and for presentation
purposes, is deducted from the gross amounts due under the reconciliation of gross and net investment
amount under the Murabaha financing contracts.

2.26.3 Installment sales receivables

Products sold under installment arrangement, which transfer the control of the goods to the
customer, are reflected as sales upon delivery of the products to the customer. Amounts due from
customers related to such installment sales are included in investment in Islamic financing contracts.
The difference between the installment sales contracts receivable and the cost of the sold asset, is
recorded as unearned installment sales profit and for presentation purposes, is deducted from the
gross amounts due under the reconciliation of gross and net investment amount under the
installment sales financing contracts.

2.26.4 Islamic credit card receivables

Islamic Credit Card receivables are initially measured at the fair value which is the cash consideration
to originate the receivable including transaction costs. Following initial recognition, the receivables
are stated at amortised cost.

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS, that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, requires
the use of certain critical estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes
estimates and judgments concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

The estimates that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Critical accounting estimates
0] Measurement of ECL allowance on investment in Islamic financing contracts

Measurement of ECL allowance is an estimate that involves determination methodology, models and
data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are further detailed in Note 30.

The following components have a major impact on ECL allowance: definition of default, significant
increase in credit risk, probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default
(LGD), as well as models of macro-economic scenarios used as forward-looking information. The Group
regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between
expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience.

An increase or decrease of 10% in the oil prices scenario weightings with all other variables held
constant, will result in an increase or decrease of Saudi Riyals 4.1 million, in the ECL allowance (31
December 2021: Saudi Riyals 3.0 million).

An increase or decrease of 10% in the unemployment scenario weightings with all other variables held
constant will result in an increase of Saudi Riyals 0.5 million, in the ECL allowance (31 December 2021:
Saudi Riyals 0.3 million).

An increase or decrease of 10% in the loss rates (PDs and LGDs) assuming macro-economic factors
remain the same, will result in an increase of Saudi Riyals 8.2 million or a decrease of Saudi Riyals 7.9
million, respectively, in the ECL allowance (31 December 2021: an increase of Saudi Riyals 6.0 million
or a decrease of Saudi Riyals 5.8 million, respectively in the ECL allowance).

(i) Provision for slow moving inventories
Inventory markdowns and provision for slow moving and damaged items:

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realizable value. When inventories become old,
obsolete or subject to technological changes, an estimate is made of their net realizable value. Factors
considered in the determination of mark downs include current and anticipated demand, customer
preferences and seasonal trends. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an individual basis. Items which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are
assessed collectively and a mark down is applied according to the inventory type and the degree of
aging or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices. Furthermore, management maintains
provision for slow moving and damaged inventories.

At year-end, if the inventories’ markdown and provision increased or decreased by 10% with all other

variables held constant, net profit for the year would have been higher or lower by Saudi Riyals 2.3

million (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 1.8 million).

(b) Critical accounting judgements

(i) SPPP Test:

Management has assessed the prepayment and early termination features of the Islamic financing
contract which require the customers to pay certain compensation in addition to the outstanding

principal and accrued profit. However, management believes that such additional amounts represent
‘reasonable compensation’ for the reinvestment costs.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)
(b) Critical accounting judgements (continued)
(1) SPPP Test (continued)

Furthermore, the contractual provisions also stipulate that in the event of default of payment of two
consecutive installments by the customer, the entire contract amount becomes payable upon demand
by the Group at its discretion. However, the Group pursues legal action to recover its outstanding dues
only upon meeting certain additional requirements as set out in the applicable SAMA regulations and
the amounts to be recovered from the customer, representing the outstanding principal and profit is
determined by the outcome of the legal action. Accordingly, management believes that the contractual
cashflows of investment in Islamic financing contracts meet the SPPP test.

4 Revenue
2022 2021
Recognized at a point in time
Retail 4,407,501 4,135,118
Wholesale 38,985 32,878
E-commerce 1,039,095 1,227,225
5,485,581 5,395,221
Recognized over time
Extended warranty program 121,233 89,562
Others 2,256 1,976
123,489 91,538
Total sales and services 5,609,070 5,486,759
Income from Islamic financing contracts 421,996 346,869
6,031,066 5,833,628
5 Selling and distribution expenses
Note 2022 2021
Salaries and benefits 267,738 267,356
Depreciation 9,10 87,864 84,487
Advertising 46,822 46,229
Bank charges on electronic receipts 29,348 26,053
Utilities, printing and stationery 27,063 27,054
Delivery charges 21,436 21,206
Repairs and maintenance 17,049 16,022
Security services 9,380 9,703
Amortisation 12 4,779 4,587
Others 44,859 35,341
556,338 538,038
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6 General and administrative expenses
Note 2022 2021
Salaries and benefits 133,423 125,440
Amortisation 12 8,369 8,510
Depreciation 9,10 7,994 3,473
Repairs and maintenance 7,868 4,190
Information technology support 7,785 5,712
Professional fees 6,401 6,436
Others 11,984 13,527
183,824 167,288
7 Other income
Note 2022 2021
Gain on recognition of net investment in finance lease 7.1 13,635 -
Value-added-tax (“VAT”) claim 7.2 10,590 -
Gain on termination and remeasurement of leases 6,502 10,952
Product launch incentive 3,750 -
Others 8,001 5,861
42,478 16,813
7.1 During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement for

a leased land parcel and accordingly, the Company has derecognized a portion of the right-of-use assets
for the head lease and recognized a net investment in a finance lease and other income of Saudi Riyals
13.6 million.

7.2 Prior to the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had received additional assessments
for VAT for the years 2018 and 2019 amounting to Saudi Riyals 10.6 million which were recognized as
an expense and settled by the Company. However, the Company had filed an appeal against such
additional assessments and during the year ended 31 December 2022, the appeal was concluded and the
Company’s contentions were accepted by the ZATCA, resulting in recognition of other income against
such amount refunded to the Company.

8 Finance charges
Note 2022 2021
Finance cost on lease liabilities 22 38,733 35,831
Finance cost on borrowings 11,374 1,940
50,107 37,771

Finance charges amounting to Saudi Riyals 27.8 million (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 11.2 million)
related to the consumer financing activities have been presented under ‘Cost of revenue’
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9 Property and equipment
Furniture,
Buildings and fixtures and Capital
leasehold office work-in-
Land improvements equipment Vehicles progress Total
2022
Cost
1 January 110,889 415,415 311,997 19,382 26,107 883,790
Additions - 8,088 48,773 108 39,109 96,078
Disposals - (650) (466) (1,421) (91) (2,628)
Transfers - 35,739 73 - (35,812) -
Written-off - (968) (2,928) - - (3,896)
31 December 110,889 457,624 357,449 18,069 20,313 973,344
Accumulated
depreciation
1 January - (165,065) (256,159) (15,464) - (436,688)
Additions - (21,028) (25,379) (480) - (46,887)
Disposals - 650 930 632 - 2,212
Written-off - 399 2,754 - - 3,153
31 December - (185,044) (277,854) (15,312) - (478,210)
Net book value 110,889 272 580 79,595 2,757 29,313 495,134
Furniture,
Buildings and fixtures and Capital
leasehold office work-in-
_ Land improvements equipment Vehicles progress  Total
2021
Cost
1January 110,889 406,899 296,090 22,524 17,489 853,801
Additions - 3,889 17,891 425 14,996 37,201
Disposals - - (705) (3,025) - (3,730)
Transfers - 4,627 1,751 - (6,378) -
Written-off - - (3,030) (542) - (3,572)
31 December 110,889 415,415 311,997 19,382 26,107 883,790
Accumulated
depreciation
1 January - (145,070) (238,823) (17,769) - (401,662)
Additions = (19,995) (20,763) (739) - (41,497)
Disposals - - 661 2,527 - 3,188
Written-off - - 2,766 517 - 3,283
31 December - (165,065) (256,159) (15,464) - (436,688)
Net book value 110,889 250,350 55,838 3,918 26,107 447,102

The buildings and leasehold improvements of the Group are constructed on land parcels leased under
renewable lease agreements for durations ranging from 1 to 20 Hijra years.
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9 Property and equipment (continued)

The Group’s capital-work-in-progress as at 31 December 2022 principally comprises, amoung other
items, the costs incurred related to leasehold improvements and construction of a new store which
is expected to be completed by June 2023 with a total estimated costs of Saudi Riyals 25.0 million.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Number of years
e Building and leasehold improvements 10 - 33
e Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4-10
e Vehicles 5
Depreciation for the years ended 31 December has been allocated as follows:
Note 2022 2021
Selling and distribution expenses 5 40,092 38,139
General and administrative expenses 6 6,795 3,358
46,887 41,497
10 Right-of-use assets
Office
Land Stores Warehouses buildings Total
2022
Cost
1January 393,757 152,169 13,285 3,104 562,315
Additions - 56,446 32,636 11,518 100,600
Recognition of net (24,267)
investment in finance
leases - (24,267) - -
Termination - (20,762) (9,479) - (30,241)
Remeasurement - 22 529 - - 22,529
31 December 393,757 186,115 36,442 14,622 630,936
Accumulated
depreciation
1 January (63,004)  (66,661) (6,927)  (1,954) (138,546)
Additions (20,426)  (23,961) (2,932)  (1,652) (48,971)
Recognition of net - 1,327
investment in finance
leases - 1,327 -
Termination - 5,457 5,289 - 10,746
Right-of-use assets - (4,307)
capitalised - (4,307) -
31 December (83,430)  (88,145) (4,570)  (3,606) (179,751)
Net book value 310,327 97,970 31,872 11,016 451,185
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10 Right-of-use assets (continued)
Offices
Land Stores Warehouses building Total

2021
Cost
1January 314,952 131,052 51,086 3,104 500,194
Additions 76,702 32,165 - - 108,867
Recognition of net

investment in finance

leases - (11,048) - - (11,048)
Termination - - (37,801) - (37,801)
Remeasurement 2,103 - - - 2,103
31 December 393,757 152,169 13,285 3,104 562,315
Accumulated

depreciation
1 January (42,232)  (45,706) (11,618) (1,387) (100,943)
Additions (20,772)  (22,255) (2,869) (567) (46,463)
Recognition of net

investment in finance

leases - 1,300 - - 1,300
Termination - - 7,560 - 7,560
31 December (63,004) (66,661) (6,927) (1,954) (138,546)
Net book value 330,753 85,508 6,358 1,150 423,769

Adjustments during the year ended 31 December 2022 pertains to remeasurement of a lease
amounting to Saudi Riyals 22.5 million (2021: Saudi Riyals 2.1 million), derecognition on account of
sub-lease amounting to Saudi Riyals 22.9 million (2021: Saudi Riyals 9.7 million) and termination of a
lease amounting to Saudi Riyals 26.0 million (2021: Saudi Riyals 41.8 million). Also see Note 22.

11 Net investment in finance lease

11.1  Reconciliation between gross and net investment in finance leases is as follows:

2022 2021
Gross investment in finance leases 81,848 21,000
Unearned finance income (32,845) (9,364)
Net investment in finance leases 49,003 11,636
Non-current portion (46,908) (10,988)
Current portion 2,095 648
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11 Net investment in finance lease (continued)

11.2  Maturity profile of gross investment in finance leases and present value of
minimum lease payments receivables is as follows:

2022 2021
Gross investment in finance leases
Within one year 5,300 1,500
From one to two years 4,076 1,000
From two to three years 4,076 1,000
From three to four years 4,326 1,000
Four years and above 64,061 16,500
81,848 21,000
2022 2021
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable
Within one year 2,095 648
From one to two years 1,262 159
From two to three years 1,345 170
From three to four years 1,683 185
Four year and above 42,618 10,474
49,003 11,636

Also see Note 30.
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12 Intangible assets

2022
Cost

1 January
Additions

Write-off / transfers

31 December

Accumulated amortization

1January
Additions

Write-off / transfers

31 December

Net book value

2021
Cost
1January
Additions

Write-off / transfers

31 December

Accumulated amortization

1January
Additions
31 December

Net book value

Assets
Computer under
software development Total
125,075 6,927 132,002
6,382 6,481 12,863
7,792 (7,882) (90)
139,249 5,526 144,775
(77,152) - (77,152)
(13,148) - (13,148)
90 - 90
(90,210) - (90,210)
49,039 5,526 54,565
Assets
Computer under
software development Total
116,244 4,695 120,939
8,962 2,232 11,194
(131) - (131)
125,075 6,927 132,002
(64,055) - (64,055)
(13,097) - (13,097)
(77,152) - (77,152)
47,923 6,927 54,850

Intangible assets, with finite useful lives, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 - 10 years. The remaining useful lives of such intangible assets range from 1 - 10 years.

The Group’s assets under development as at 31 December 2022 principally comprises the costs
incurred related to computer software and website which is expected to be completed by May 2023
with a total estimated cost of Saudi Riyals 7.5 million.

13 Goodwill

During 2019, the Group acquired Procco against a cash consideration of Saudi Riyals 5.0 million.
Goodwill arising from such acquisition has been recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position after the Group completed the purchase price allocation, within 12 months of the acquisition.
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14 Trade and other receivables

Note 2022 2021
Trade receivables 60,387 48,967
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) 30 (2,507) (2,507)
Net trade receivables 57,880 46,460
Prepaid expenses 24,110 20,782
Advances to employees 11,302 7,357
Claim receivable and refundable deposits 10,918 12,901
Advances to suppliers 5,165 11,561
Due from related parties 27 1,214 2,231
Other assets 25,600 20,325
136,189 121,617
Non-current portion
Prepaid expenses and advances to employees (6,395) (4,898)
Current portion 129,794 116,719
Also see Note 30.
15 Investment in Islamic financing contracts
2022 2021
Installment sales receivables, net 2,564 26,967
Investment in Tawarruq financing contracts, net 1,149,838 832,644
Investment in Murabaha financing contracts, net 398,324 353,417
Investment in Islamic credit cards, net 6,468 -
1,557,194 1,213,028
Non-current portion (894,032) (748,424)
Current portion 663,162 464,604

39




ob

to9‘bot 291°€99

- 89tv‘9

£50°‘1ge 289°LLT

vgS‘gte gtt‘oLE

Y9Gz uorpiod
JUaLIN) - "D A’'I
Ul JUaW}SaAul 19N

L96‘gg

(betighl) (c€o‘ve6g)

8c0‘CIT‘T PY6r1°LEST

- 89¥‘9

(Y9tecer) (st9‘ozr)

LIP'ESE vzE‘g6e

(090°919) (06E°€LL)

Yvo‘ceg ge€g6vi‘x

uorn.od
JUBLIND-UON - "D°q']
Ul JUaWSaAUL 19N
(D71 ur JuswsaAul
19N,,) SIoBIIUO0D
Suroueury orwesy
Ul JUaWISaAUL I9N

L96‘9g Y9S‘s

#5T6%) ©vsz0)

TQI‘TLTT 6€L629‘1

- (S9¢%)

- €€89

(1€1°6) (92¢%9)

8t8‘c9€ 0S9‘vot

(€S6Ce)  (b9o’ob)

LLS°9Sg 2066811

(06L°Ge) (064°S2) S]9SSE [RIOURUY

uo juawiredwr

1_U /D 10} SOUBMO[[Y
(D dT1I0Ad,)
sjoeIju0D SuroueUly
OIWB[S] UT JUSUIISIAUL

JO an[ea juasald

LSL‘3S $SE‘ge

(60%‘g6S)  (c€2‘20l)

1650481 IL6‘TEE ‘S

Ic0c ©c0gc

- €€8‘9

Ic0¢c cc0c

(elr‘ler) (olr‘lzr)

0zTo‘06V 028‘1€S

I20¢C cco0gcT

(285Z5h)  (82599%)

6S1v1ET

Ic0T ccoc

(138 AL 1TAS §

(559°€1) (ves'g) awoout a9) Juissaoord
puE ouUBUY pauIedu)

SJOBIJUOD

Suroueury orwes|

ul jusawuisaAur ssorp

erv'99 888‘9¢

Ic0c cco0c

[B10L

PIed IPAId dTWE[S]

JdurUY eYRqRININ

Joueuy bnareme],

sI3[es Juduwjelsuy

:SMO[[0] S® ST S]OBIIU0D SUDURULY OTUIE[S] U JUIUIISIAUI }9U PUR SSOIS UIIMII( UONBI[IOU0IY  T°ST

(panunuod) sjoeuod SUPURUL JTUWR[S] Ul JUIUNSIAU] 14

(Pa3€3S 9SIMIDYIO SSI[UN SPUBSNOY} S[EATY IPNES UI SUNOWE [[V)
2202 JqUIdI3( IE PIPUD JedL 3]} J0J STUIUIIIE]S [RIDURULJ PIIBPI[OSUOD Y] 0} SIION

(Aueduwo) 001§ JUIOL IpNES V)
ANVAINOI SOINOALOHATH A4.LINN



184

gco‘Cre’t (PSr'6S) zgrele't - - - L1b'ESE (1€¥°6) 8bg‘e9t th9'zeg (£€6CT) LLS'9Sg £96‘gT (064'ST) LSL'TS
FS6‘ob [(I42) VAT - - - 8988 (Ze1'l) S0091 z9b'gr (ZPgST) 60EPE PzoCt (61€%3) [SZTWAY (€ 93e18)
Butwaopad-uoN
61v°S1 (60%°€) 82881 - - - SLSY (PLS) 6v1'S LyLL (L90‘T v1g‘6 L60°E (894) S98°C (¢ 98mig)
Furunioprad
-19puf
§599ST'1 (ebb'g) L60°S91‘T - - - YL66EE (oeglT) v69“1v€ Gev‘gog (610°9) vSberg gbeon (€ol) 6601 (1 23m18)
Buruiojrag
oAUt 104 10} DATIONd "D ATuUl TOH 103 o'l oaTTut 104 103 QOO | odTut 104 103 DATIOANd O dTUl TOd 103 o'l 1203
JUDUNSIAUL  DUBMO[[Y JUDUNSIAUL IDUBMO[Y JO A'd JUDUIISIAUL  IDUBMO[[Y JO A'd JUIUNSIAUL IDUBMO[[Y JUDUNSIAUL  IDUBMO[[Y  JO A'd J2quIAdA( 1
PN N N N PN
[L2LAR PaED MIPIID dTUIeS| Jdueuly eyeqeany sdueuyy bnaseme], sa[es judwijeisuy
PYor°LSSy (§PS‘al) 6846291 89V‘9 (S9%) €€8‘9  Pzeget (92¢‘9) oS9‘vov  gege6vi‘y (Vv9o‘ob) 2066811 v9S‘z (064°S7) vseige
6LE19 (683°LS) 899°g1T Vviz (z2a2) 96% 10€°91 (=alP) €20%12 aSz‘ab (Yi9°9z) 976°89 3956 (149°Sz) €az‘gT (€ a%e1g)
Buruuojiad-uoN
11g‘oz (Y9z‘€) GlLo‘ve ooV (96) 96% €95y (961) 6SLY obvg ‘St (068‘c) o€L‘gr 8 (<8) 06 (T 38mig)
Suruuioprad
-13pun
Yoo‘Sibx (266°11)  966°9gt‘t  V6LS “y) wwgS o9biLLE (gov‘r) 898848  9bL160‘t (00S‘OT) gba‘zor‘r v (L€) 184 (133e)g)
Suruwiojrag
oy ut TOd 103 0’ oarrury 104 103 RO X | orarrur TOd 10} RO X0 gy ut TOd 103 RO X 0 o N: 9 R 104 103 o'’ @coT
JUDUNSIAUT  IDUBMO[[V JO A'd USUISIAUL  IDUEMO[[V JO A'd JUDUNSIAUT  DUBMO[[V JO A'd JUIUNSIAUL IDUBMO[[Y JO A'd JUDUIISIAUL  DUBMO[[V  JO A'd I2quIdda( 1€
1PN BN 1PN BN 1N
2101 PIED JIPAJD OTWR[S] Jdueuly eyeqeany dueuy bnareme], sa[es Judwielsuy
:SMO[[O] se aae uﬂ&EthQEm \..—an Jd0J duemore 0>ﬁ00&m0.~ I} pue sjoeIIuU0d Mﬁmoﬁﬁﬂm« JTure[sy jo mmm%—ﬁﬁﬁ Ommauowﬂam €St
PS1‘6G [ 55672 - S9t €6 92¢‘9 €e6‘te Yoo‘ot 06/Se 06L‘Sg aoue[eq 3uisop)
(601°v1) (vot‘le) - - (2LE°F) [€3230)) (LL1°01) (122‘13) (099) - JJO-Us)lIM sjunowy
g6t‘Sc CCLoV - S9¢ 1269 g8€0‘€C GLE‘6T TGELE (86L) - ek
9y} 10} a81eyD ([BsIanal) 19N
- (Sor‘l) - - - (ev'e) - (269'7) - - 1O - uanm Asnotraad
SJUNOWE JO SILIDAOO9Y
g6v‘Ge 09g‘LY - S9€ 1269 1SHS SLE‘61 vvo‘zt (864) - 1e34 3y} 10} 331BYD ([BSIAAIY)
GoLLY PSr‘6S - - 288‘G €6 SeLPYt €€6°‘Ce gb1le 06L'Se douereq Suruado
20T <c0¢c Ic0gc <cO0c Ic0c F4 4014 I20¢ cc0gc 10T F4 444
=oL PJIed }PIJd dTwe[S] JoueUl eyeqRINJA Jdoueuy bnareme], SI[es judweisuy

:SMO[[0] SE ST s1oenuod Supueul Srue[s] uo jusuriredurl/J)H J0J 30UEMO[[€ Ul JUIWIIAOUI ],

(penunuoo) spoeruod SuPUeUL dIWE[S] Ul JUIUNSIAU]

2'S1

St

(Po1e)s 9SIMIST[JO SSI[UN SPUBSNIOY] S[RATY IPTES Ul SJUNOWe [[V)
2T0T J3QUIIII( I PIPUI IBIL 3] J0J SHUIUII]L]S [BIDOURUL] PIIEPI[OSUOD Y] 0] SIION
(Aueduwio) }o01§ ur0f IpNES V)
ANVAWOO SOINOULIATA AALINO



vS1'es €ot‘Ly 60v°€ A2
(890°2) 0l2‘t (g80¢%) (o€0‘t)
(6orbr) (148°CT) (ern) (9z1)
1Se2b1 982‘L 41910 orb‘S
(096) (€69) (848) L4

erber PS8t (Sc6) (919)

c98 (bor) 2901 (96)
S9LLY 19v‘QE 1) 854 6849
[eioL (€98w19) (2 38e19) (ra8m1g)

Surwaoyrod  Surunroprad Sururaoprag
-UoON -I3puf)

SvGel 68cLS voz‘€ 266°TIr
90S‘€  S9EL (1617) (8992)
(Yo€Le) (141°L2) (821) (S9)
vlo‘6r - - vio‘6r
(0%9) (62€) (x9€) ot
T0L‘LY  L9z‘o€ (009T) (996°01)
vzi‘c  (9br) ser‘e (S98°1)
PS1‘6S  €o€Ltb 60t‘€ zbtig
[e10L (€38we19) (s 38e1g) (r98e19)

Suruaoyrod  Suruniopdd SuruLIoLdg

-UON

-Iapun)

t474

120T JaquIad_( 1€

sa3ueyo Y10

JJO-UonLIM sjunowry

Po1euI3LIO S]OSSE [BIOUBUT] MAN

(sasso[ 31paId pa3oadxa yiuow-gr) Suturiojrad 0] palIsJSUEI) S}OSSE [BIOUBUL) [ENPIAIPU]
(s1esse [eroueuy parredwI-11pald) SUIULIO}Iad- UOU 0] PalIdJSURI) S}OSSE [BIOUBUL) [ENPIAIPU]
(sass0] 31pald pazoadxe swne)l[) JuruiioLad-19pun 03 PaLIdJSUEI} SJOSSE [BIOURUL [BNPIAIPU]
1203 Atenuep 1

1c03

220¢ I1aquIadd(J 1€

sa3ueyo Y0

JJO-UaLIM spunoury

P91RUISLIO S]9SSE [BIOUBUL MIN

(soss0[ 11paId pardadxa Yluow-21) SurIolad 0} palIdjsSueI) S}9SSE [BIOURUIL} [ENPIAIPU]
(s19sse [eroueuly parredwi-11pad) SUTULIO)Iod- UOU 0] PaLIdJSUEI) SJOSSE [BIOURUL) [ENPIAIPU]
(sasso[ 11paId pazoadxae swine)|) SutIoLed-I9puUn 0] PAIIaJSULT] S]OSSE [EIOUBULY [ENPIAIPU]
2cog Arenuep 1

23%0g¢

:SMO[[0] S® ST S]PeuU0d SurduRUY JIWE[S] Ul JUaur}saaul uo judurrredurr/aouemole TOH Ul JudwdAouw 3sim-a8els St

(penunuod) s1oeauod SUDURUL JTWE[S] Ul JUUnS3AU] 5] §

(Po1e1Ss 9SIMISY10 SSA[UN SPUBSNIOY] S[BATY IPNES UL S}UNOWE [[V)

TTOT JIqUIdDI( T€ PIpPUS 1e3A 3] J0J SJUIUIIIE]S [RIDOUBUL PIIEPI[OSUOD Y] 0} SIION

(Auedwo) }o01§ JUIof IpNes V)
ANVJINOD SOINOYLOATH AA.LINN



124

683°LS Yoz 266°11 233 96 VA7 33LY 961 gob‘t vi9‘9g 068°‘c ooS‘or 1L9°Sg 28 LE ..o._Euowc
€Iy
Sog°L (161°1) (8992) - - €c 12S (8S1) (S617) c6bS [VA%3) (0€8) cSe1 (989) (999) sagueyd
Y10
(iL14z)  (8en) (S9) - - - (r80'9)  (Lb) (01) go're)  (18) (S9) - - - Jjo-usnum
sjunowry
- - bLo‘6t - - (443 - - 6L6‘c - - €6LS1 - - - pajeurduio
sjasse
[eroueuly
MIN
(62€) (19€) ot - - - (Zorx) £g) € (cce) (YLe) LE - - - (s9sso|
1paId
pa1dadxa
yjuow-gr)
Suruwioyrad -
99z‘0¢ (665°1) (996‘01) k44 - (cc2) t9z‘€ (482) (L16T) 08L‘9T (e1e7) (L28‘8) - - - (s1esse
[eroueuy
paateduut
-11paud)
Suruwroyrad
-uou-
(Shr) ver‘e (S98°1) - 96 (96) 6) 10T (eLr) (9¢1) LEg‘T (£6S°1) - - - (sesso]
1pald
pa1adxa
awnajI)
Suruwroyrad
-Iapun-
0}
palisjsueny
sjasse
[eroueuly
[enplalpug
€oeLy 6ov‘€ zbv‘g - - - LE1L vLS ozl Lyg St Lgo‘z 610‘9 618ve 894 €ol Arenuep 11y

(€98m15) (z93ws) (1 283m9) (€99m9) (= 23%15) (1o3e15) (€ o3mis) (= 23e15) (1 283m15) (€ 28m9) (z 23m19) (1o3e15) (€9o8m15) (=93m19) (1o3e15) zz0zT
Sururopad Surunioprdd  Suruniopdg Sunwaopdd  Sunuaoynd  Surwaopdg Sutwaopad  Suiuaopad  Sutwiopdg  Sunwaopad  Sunuaoprad  Sunwaopiag Sunuaopiad Suruaopad  Surwaopiag
-uoN -Japupn -uoN -1apun -UoN -J2apun -uoN -1apun -uoN -1apun

eoL PJaED JIPAID dTWe[S] JdurUY BYRQRINA oueuy bnueme], sa[es judupeisu]

:SMO[[0] se ST Juduwraredurr/aouemorie TOH ISIM-35e)s Ul JUIWIAOW ISIM-AI0Se) S°St
(panunuod) s}oesuod SuueULly JTWE[S] Ul JUIUNSIAUJ St

(Pa1e1S 9SIMI9YI0 SSa[UnN SPUBSNOY] S[BATY IPNES Ul SJUNOWE [[V)

2TO0T JIqUIdII( T€ PIapUD JeaA 9] J0J SJUIUII]E]S [RIDUBUL] PIJBPI[OSUOD I} 0] SIION
(Aueduro)) }o03§ Jutof Ipnes V)

ANVJINOO SOINOYLOATA AALINN



144

[ VA2 60v°‘C [AZ2&:] - - - LETL vLS 0Tl1 LYg‘St L90‘T 610‘9 618vc 89L g€oL JIqUIdDI(L
1€y
olz1 (80¢%) (0€0%) - - - (S9) @) (60€71) 6861 09 (€681) (Y09) (99¢%) cll sadueyo
P10
JJO-U_ILIM
sjunoury
(14g8€r) (err) (9zr1) - - - vee) (61) (6) (£966) (€6) (L11) (099) - - pareurduo
sjasse
[eoueuy
MIN
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (sasso[
1paId
pa10adxa
Yyiuow-gr)
Bururoyrad -
98c‘L GGG1 orb‘s - - - 9€8‘c Sob 19€T oStv oS1T 6ot - - - (s1esse
[eroueuly
paareduut
-11pa1d)
Sururioprad
-uou-
0L6‘€ (61r1) (9ST1) 9gr1‘ot (rern) (Shb) - - - (sasso|
1paId
pa10adxa
awnayIy)
Sururioyrad
-Japun-
0}
paligjsuen
sjasse
[eroueuly
[enplalpu]
29b‘ge viSe 6849 - - - obL‘E 60¢ £E8°1 6€2‘6 101 Sevv £8v‘Se vera 1€5 Arenuep 11y

9STb1 (obz) (r09) - -

(£ 33e18) [CEEED) (193e15) (€ o3e15) (T 23e15) (1 23e15) (€93m1s) (z 23e18) (193e15) (£ 933m18) (z 23m18) [CEEED)) (£93e15) (= 93215) (133e18) 1203
Suruiopad Surwiroyad  Suruiopdg Sunuaopdd  Surwaopndd Surwaopag Suruuopad  Sunuaopad  Surwaopdg  Surnwaopad  Sunwaoniad Suruaopag Sutwaopdd  Suruaopad  Sunwaoyiag
-UoN -1apun -UoN -1apun -uoN -1apun -UON -1pun -uoN -1apun

e PIED JIPAID dTWIR[S| Jdueuy BYRqRINA sdueuy bnareme], sa[es judwieisu

(penurnuod) :SMof[o] sk sI juduiaredurl/aduemof[e TOH ISIM-35B]S Ul JUIUIIAOW ISIM-AI08de)  S°St
(penunjuod) s1orIUOd SUDURUL STWE[S] UI JUIUNSIAUT 4

(Pa3e1s 9SIMIAY10 SS[UN SPUBSNOY] S[BATY] IPNES UI S}UNOWE [[y)

20T J9qUIdDI( T€ PIpusd 1eak oY) J0J SJUIWIIE]S [RIDURULY PIIBPI[OSUOD 3] 0} SIJON
(Auedwo) }o03§ JuIof Ipnes v)

ANVJNOD SOINOU.LOATH A4LINN



14

'0€ 910N 99S
OS[y "uoI[[iuw €S s[eAny Ipnes 03 Sununowe sansodxs JJo-usllm A[snomsad WO} SaLIA0091 £q 19510 A[[enred usaaq Sey Yorym uol[[Iw S g1 S[eATY Ipnes
03 ununowe sjo-a3um uodn paziugoosal THH 10 sdUBMO][e [euorIppe Jo Joedur Jou jussaidar Ajfedourid sedueyd YO, € 98e1g J9pun sainsodxs uQ -

PUE {JJO UDIILIM SIOSSE [RIOUBUL] -
{1ea4 9y} SuInp pastud00aa SJ9SSE [BIOUBUI] MU 0] SIOUBMO[[E [BUOIPPY -
{0€ 910N 99s OS[V "JOH Ul 9SBIIOAP B SPIBEMO] PaINGLIIU0D Sey o1jojiiod
eyeqeanyy uo TOH Sunndwod 10y pasn O ul a5ueyd jo pedw ‘@rowreyny “1eak Joud 9y} uey) JOMO[ aIe YoIym s d8eIase pajySom 9y} Je dALLIe

0} Pasn UONBWLIOJUI }[NEJIP pPUE UOII[[0d [edL101s1Y Yy} pajepdn sey dnoin ay3 ‘ggog SuLInp pasealoul sey g pue T 98e1g ut aansodxa [€303 93U} [IYM -

‘IO dWIISYI[ Pue Yuow-gT usamia( (,umop dais, 10) ,dn deis, juanbasuoo ay3 pue ‘porrad
9y} ur pairedwi-3Ipa1d SUIUIODI] I0 YSLI JIPAID Ul (S9SBAIOAP 10) sasearoul Jueoyrudis Surouarrodxe seoue[eq 03 anp ‘€ pue g ‘T 98e1S UIIMII( SIdJSURL], -

1220g IJ9qUIadd(J T€ papua 1ea4 a1 SulInp s0uBMO[[e TOH 9Y3 Ul 3ueyd 9} 03 PIINLIFUO0D SI030e] SUIMO[[O]
(ponunuod) :smofqjojy se s1 Juawareduwi/aouemoqe TOH ISIM-35e]1S Ul JUIUIIAOW ISIMm-A108a3e)  S°C1
(penunuod) s1oeIU0d SUIDURULY OTWIR]S] UT JUIUIISIAU] 4

(Pa1e1Ss 9SIMIaYI0 SSa[unN SPUBSNOY] S[BATY IPNES Ul SJUNOWR [[V)

STOT JIQUIADI( TE PIPUD JBaA 31} J0J SJUIUWII]E]S [RIOUBUL] PIJEPI[OSUOD I} 0} SIION
(Auedwo) }o03§ jurof IPNES V)

ANVAINOD SOINOALOATA AALINA



ot

6V0 Vo1 11g°€s mnr'v€r‘c g6t 961 1vg‘S €11‘gg 3 744 S96‘66Y €3l‘001 SSPlz 252‘829‘T LILQE |11 €S J2quIdda(q
€1y

(LLz'99)  (€ELlgr) [(AZA3)) - - - (64¥°gr) (2252 (e16'91€)  (1SL9€)  (eb9’l) (Sor‘€1S)  (Zbo'1n) (LVLY) [CIYA3)) sadueyd
I9yjo pue

Suond3[[0D

(iir'le)  (8zn) (59) - - - (¥80°9) (4¥) (e1) (480‘12)  (18) (€9) - - - Jjo-usyum
sjunowry

- - 16v‘Stbt - - 2889 - - TLYLRE - - L86‘020°1 - - - pareurduio
s}asse

[eroueuly

MIN

(Sbo‘r) (4S8‘2) 206°C - - - (0z¢) (0€6) oSet (Sel) (£26°T) 2S9‘c - - - (sosso|
1paId

paoadxa

Jluow-z2r)

Gurwroyrad -

y6€‘9€1  (6Lzer) (Str‘ver) 96¥ - (96%) 86268 (9b1‘€) (eSt1‘9e) 009‘901  (£€1°6) (L9b L6) - - - (s1esse
[eoueUl)

paaredur

-1Ipa.d)

Suiuroyrad

-uou-

(oLb) 6v56€ (890°6€) - 961 (S6t%) (62) G1SL (LLvL) (ivtb) 8ES1E (9601€) - - - (sasso|
1pald

paadxa

aw_jI)

Suiwiojrad

-lapun-

0}

palIgjsuey

s)asse

[eroueuyy

[enplalpu]

819‘CTL 6Sc‘92 grLrel - - - Lzl ¥69‘9 96519t LT1‘ES 00L‘YtL veeobet  bolly S98‘v €8LCtL Arenuep 1 1y

cT0T

T€8ms) (zo3=1s) (1 28e15) (€ o8w15) (zo8®ms)  (193w15) (CEEED) CEEED) (1 o3u19) (€o8ms) (= 9o3w1g) (1 23m15) (€ 93e15) (= o3m1S) (193wu15)
Sunuaopdd Surwaoydd Sunwaoypg  Sunwaopad  Sunuaopad Sunuaopdg Sunuaopdd  Surwaopdd  Sunuaopdg Sururoprdd Surwaoyad  Surwaopdg Surnwaopdd  Surnwaopdd  Surwaopg
-uoN -1apun -uoN -19pun -uoN -1apupn -uoN -1a3pun -uoN -1apun

1101, PIED JIPAID dTWR[S| JdueUY eYRqRINN dueuy bnaieme], sa[es Judwpeisu]

:SMO[[0] S® ST S]ORIIUO0D SUIDURULJ OTWR[S] Ul JUIUNSIAUIL SSOIT Isim-a5e]s ul Jusurdaoul Ism-A1053je) 9°Sr

(penunuod) spoeauod SUUERUL) JTWR[S] Ul JUIUNSIAU] St

(Pa3®B1S 9SIMIAYIO SSI[UN SPUBSNOY] S[BATY IPNES UT SJUNOWE [[V)

2TOT J2qUIANI( T€ PIpPUS JedA 3] J0J SJUIUII]E]S [BIDUBULJ PIJEPI[OSUO0D 3] 0} SIJION
(Aueduro) 001§ UIoOL IpNes y)

ANVJINOD SOINOYLOATH AA.LIN(1



Ly

819‘CTL 65292

vilrela

- - 6clie Y69‘9 L6519 G21es 00L‘bt veeobet  bollv S98‘v (YA JquIddd(Q
1€V

(GgETS)  (960%1)

(riger) (a11)

(920°11) (S26°S)

LIE6L (§€0‘9)

(e1b) Lg6‘Ye

|82°4114¢ obbLe

(0S.‘019)

(921)

8561921

15691

(942‘€L)

(545g)

TESIST T

- - (ot¥9) (SS1°2) (Yolo€e) (8E9‘rr) (L80%2) (815‘20€) (LOEVE) (¥Sg8°6) (8eS°LL) saueyd
19410 pue
SUO01303[[0)

JJO-uanLIM

sjunoury
pareurduio
s)asse
[eroueuy

MIN
- - (P6SY) (0Sz2‘®) bbgL (c€t9) (S49T) LO1‘6 - - - (sesso|
11pa1d
paoadxa
yjuow-gr)

Suruwioyad -

(syesse
[eroueuy
padredut

-11palId)
Suturioyred
-uou-

(sesso|

1paId
pa1oadxa
auInayI)

Surunioyprad

-Iapun-

0}
palidjsuery
sjosse
[eroueuly
[enplalpu]
- - GSLot 690°‘S g€SL'obe S19‘9e 2S9L 89b‘61L 10‘28 61LD1 1116 Arenuep 11y

- - (bpe€)  (61) (6) (L96'6)  (£6) (L11)

- - - - P11°6LE - - ¥¥8°988

- - L9€‘be (Lob‘T) (006‘22) br6vS (89S‘Y) (94€09)

- - (S1) 915‘g (105‘g) (46%) 1Ly 9t (bLo‘9r)

(€38ms) (z928w9)

-uoN -I13pupn
=L

(193e15)

(€23u15)
Surwaoprad Surwaopad  Surwaopdg Sururroprad
-uoN

(z 93%15) (13se1s) (£33ms) (2 933e18) [CEEED) (£93m8) (2 33e)g) [CEEED) (€98ms) (@ 33e18) (123m15) 1202
Surturoprad Sunwaopdd Surnwaopad  Surwaopad  Sunwaopdg Surwaopdd Sunwaoydd  Surnuopdg Surnwaopad  Surwaopdd  Surwaoprag
-Iapun -uoN -Iapun -uoN -1apun -uoN -1apupn

PJED JIPAID dIwe|s| Jdueuy eYeRqRIN) adueuy bnareme], sa[es juaweisug

(Penunuod) :SMO[[0J Sk ST SIPBIIU0D SUIDURUL) OTUIR][ST UI JUIUNSIAUT SSOIS ISIM-I8R]S Ul JUIWIA0OW ISIM-A105918)  9°ST

(penunuoo) s3oeIU0d SUPURUL DIWR[S] Ul JUIUL}SIAU] St

(Pa1®1S 9SIMILY]O0 SSO[UN SPUBSTIOY] S[BATY IPNES U SJUNOWE [[V)

TTOT JIqUIIADI( TE PIpPUa JBIL 3] J0J SJUIUIIE]S [BIOUBULJ PIICPI[OSUOD 3] 0] SIION
(Aueduwro) 003§ JuIor Ipnes y)

ANVJINOD SOINOYLOATH AA.LIN(



UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 Investment in Islamic financing contracts (continued)

15.7 Maturity profile of gross investment in Islamic financing contracts and present
value of investiment in Islamic financing contracts is as follows:

Gross investment in Islamic financing contracts
Within one year

From one to two years

From two to three years

From three to four years

Four to five years

Present value of investment in Islamic financing
contracts

Within one year

From one to two years

From two to three years

From three to four years

Four to five years

16 Inventories

Inventories
Goods-in-transit

Provision for slow moving inventories

Movement in the provision for slow moving inventories is as follows:

At 1 January
Additions
Write-offs

At 31 December

2022 2021
1,060,276 811,234
648,086 507,928
369,007 305,160
186,002 182,192
68,600 64,077
2,331,971 1,870,591
789,601 590,328
445,960 341,111
239,064 192,735
114,980 110,520
40,134 37,488
1,629,739 1,272,182
2022 2021
1,070,117 1,166,211
15,171 39,602
1,085,288 1,205,813
(5,656) (3,296)
1,079,632 1,202,517
2022 2021
39296 -
11,051 12,798
(8,691) (9,502)
5,656 3,296

At 31 December 2022, inventories amounting to Saudi Riyals 132.4 million (31 December 2021: Saudi
Riyals 107.1 million) were carried at their net realizable value. The cost of inventories recognised as
expense amounted to Saudi Riyals 4,738.0 million (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 4,614.3 million)
including inventory markdowns amounting to Saudi Riyals 11.5 million (31 December 2021: Saudi
Riyals 21.9 million). During the year ended 31 December 2022, transportation costs required to bring
inventories to their present location and condition amounting to Saudi Riyals 22.5 million (31
December 2021: Saudi Riyals 24.4 million) have been charged to cost of revenue.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank
Cash in hand

Also see Note 30.
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 Share capital

The share capital of the Company as of 31 December 2022 consisted of 80.0 million shares (2021: 60.0
million shares) stated at Saudi Riyals 10 per share.

The Company’s Board of Directors in their meeting held on 8 August 2022 recommended to the
shareholders to increase the share capital of the Company from Saudi Riyals 600.0 million to Saudi
Riyals 800.0 million, by utilizing retained earnings and statutory reserve amounting to Saudi Riyals
140.0 million and Saudi Riyals 60.0 million respectively, through issuance of 20.0 million bonus
shares of which 3.2 million shares to be allocated to the Company for fulfilling its obligations under
the employee share option program. The shareholders in their extraordinary general assembly
meeting held on 5 October 2022 have approved such recommendation.

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding as at 31 December:

2022 2021
At 1 January 57,518,216 57,600,000
Issuance of bonus shares 20,000,000 -
Net movement in treasury shares (2,333,997) (81,784)
At 31 December 75,184,219 57,518,216

Also see Note 28 and 29.
19 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Company’s
By-laws, the Company is required to transfer 10% of the net profit for the year to a statutory reserve
until such reserve equals to 30% of its share capital. The statutory reserve in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements is the statutory reserve of the Company. This reserve is currently not
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company. Also see Note 18.

20 Borrowings

The Group has bank facilities from local banks for letters of credit, letters of guarantee, Murabaha and
Tawarruq financings. These facilities are subject to Islamic Shariah principles. The loan facilities are
denominated in Saudi Riyals and bear financial charges based on prevailing market rates. Certain
credit facility agreements contain financial covenants requiring maintenance of certain financial ratios
and other matters, of which the Group was in compliance with at 31 December 2022.

2022 2021
Long-term borrowings
Murabaha facilities 581,934 674,979
Short-term borrowings
Murabaha facilities 590,165 10,000
1,172,099 684,979
Accrued finance cost 6,952 819
1,179,051 685,798
Classification of borrowings is presented below:
Current portion (including short-term borrowings) 777,384 82,458
Non-current portion 401,667 603,340
1,179,051 685,798

The long-term Murabaha borrowings outstanding relate to UCFS, which utilizes the facilities obtained
by the Group. The various facilities and their respective utilization levels are as follows:
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20 Borrowings (continued)
Long-term borrowings
Murabaha I

Total amount allocated to UCFS under such facility is Saudi Riyals 250.0 million. Each tranche of
facility utilisation is repayable in 20 quarterly installments commencing 6 months after receipt of the
borrowed amount. As at 31 December 2022, the UCFS has an outstanding loan balance of Saudi Riyals
206.9 million against this facility (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 233.0 million).

Murabaha 1l

Total amount allocated to UCFS under such facility is Saudi Riyals 50.0 million. The tenure of the
borrowing facility was less than one year, and the amount was settled in February 2021.

Murabaha III

Total amount allocated to UCFS under such facility is Saudi Riyals 500.0 million. Each tranche of
facility utilization is repayable in 48 monthly installments commencing 6 months from receipt of the
borrowed amount. During 2022, UCFS made early repayment of borrowings in full amounting to Saudi
Riyals 360.8 million.

Subsequently, UCFS obtained an additional amount of Saudi Riyals 25.0 million against such facility
which is the outstanding loan balance as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 392.0
million).

Murabaha IV

Total amount allocated to UCFS under such facility is Saudi Riyals 400.0 million. Each tranche of
facility utilization is repayable in 16 quarterly installments commencing 6 months after receipt of the
borrowed amount. As at 31 December 2022, UCFS has an outstanding loan balance of Saudi Riyals
350.0 million against this facility (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 50.0 million).

Tawarruq I

Total amount allocated to UCFS under such facility is Saudi Riyals 70.0 million. The tenure of the
borrowing facility was less than one year, and the amount was settled in February 2021.

All loan facilities above are denominated in Saudi Riyals and bear financial charges based on Saudi
Arabian Interbank Offered Rate (“SAIBOR”) ranging between SAIBOR plus 1.1% to 1.4%. Certain
credit facility agreements contain financial covenants requiring maintenance of certain financial ratios
and other matters, of which the Group was in compliance with at 31 December 2022.

Short term borrowings
Murabaha V

Total amount allocated to UCFS under such facility is Saudi Riyals 250.0 million. The tenure of the
borrowing facility is less than one year. As at 31 December 2022, UCFS had an outstanding loan
balance of Saudi Riyals 250.0 million against this facility (31 December 2021: Nil).

Other facilities

Total amount available to the Company under such facilities is Saudi Riyals 1,670.0 million. The
tenure of such borrowing facilities is less than one year. As at 31 December 2022, the Company has an
outstanding balance of Saudi Riyals 340.2 million against such facilities (31 December 2021: Saudi
Riyals 10.0 million).
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20 Borrowings (continued)

The contractual maturities of the borrowings at 31 December are as follows:

2022 2021

Less than 6 months 692,799 81,639
Between 6 - 12 months 77,633 85,708
Between 1 and 2 years 155,267 171,417
Between 2 and 5 years 242,400 342,215
Above 5 years 4,000 4,000
1,172,099 684,979

Maturity profile of borrowings, including finance cost component, is disclosed in Note 30.
21 Deferred revenue from extended warranty program

Revenue from the Group’s extended warranty program is deferred upon consideration received from
the customers and amortised over the period of contract.

The breakup of current and non-current portion of the deferred revenue is as follows:

2022 2021

Non-current portion 126,433 108,808
Current portion 113,297 86,349
239,730 195,157

Movement of deferred revenue from extended warranty program is as follows:

2022 2021
At January 195,157 160,283
Contracts issued 165,806 124,436
Revenue recognised (121,233) (89,562)
At 31 December 239,730 195,157

The carrying value of deferred revenue from extended warranty program on the consolidated
statement of financial position represents unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the
reporting period.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period
amounted to Saudi Riyals 86.3 million (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 66.8 million).
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22 Lease liabilities

Note 2022 2021
At 1 January 552,045 535,960
Additions 100,600 108,867
Finance cost 8 38,733 35,831
Repayments (86,336) (86,849)
Remeasurement 22,529 -
Termination (25,997) (41,764)
At 31 December 601,574 552,045
Lease liabilities on the consolidated statement of

financial position are presented as follows:
Non-current portion 573,319 519,061
Current portion 28,255 32,984
601,574 552,045

Maturity profile of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 30.

@) Other amounts recognised in profit and loss
2022 2021
Expense relating to short-term (included in selling and
marketing and general and administrative expenses) 3,474 4,925

The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was Saudi Riyals 89.8 million (2021: Saudi Riyals 91.8
million).

(i) Additional information about the Group’s leasing activities

The Group has leases for stores, lands, warehouses and office buildings. Rental contracts are typically
for fixed periods ranging from 1 to 20 years but generally have extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options are included to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension options held are
exercisable only by mutual agreement of the Group and the respective lessor.

23 Employee benefit obligations
23.1  General description of the plan

The Group operates defined benefit plans in line with the labor law requirements in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia (“KSA”), the Kingdom of Bahrain (“Bahrain”) and the Sultanate of Oman (“Oman”). The
end of service benefit payments under the plans are based on the employees' final salaries and
allowances and their cumulative years of service at the date of their termination of employment, as
defined by the conditions stated in the labor laws of KSA, Bahrain and Oman. Employees’ end of
service benefit plans are unfunded plans and the benefit payment obligations are met when they fall
due upon employee’s termination of employment. The latest valuation of employee benefit obligations
under the projected unit credit method was carried out by an independent actuary as at 31 December
2022.
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23 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

23.2 Movement in net liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position

2022 2021
1 January 73,875 74,880
Current service cost 10,079 10,913
Interest expense 2,266 1,679
Remeasurements 7)) (1,287)
Payments (7,053) (12,310)
31 December 79,090 73,875

23.3 Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

2022 2021
Current service cost 10,079 10,913
Interest expense 2,266 1,679
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12,345 12,592
Remeasurements
Gain due to change in financial assumptions (612) (3,376)
Loss due to change in demographic assumptions 156 51
Loss due to change in experience adjustments 379 2,038
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive

income (77) (1,287)

23.4 Key actuarial assumptions

2022 2021
Discount rate 4.55% - 6.5% 2.95% - 5.50%
Salary growth rate 2.00% 2.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Withdrawl rate 8% to 35% 6% to 28%

23.5 Sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial assumptions

Impact on employee

Change in assumption benefit obligations
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption
2022
Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% (2,148) 1,243
Salary growth rate 0.50% 0.50% 1,281 (2,199)
Impact on employee
Change in assumption benefit obligations
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption
2021
Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% (2,403) 2,534
Salary growth rate 0.50% 0.50% 2,032 (1,953)
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23 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
23.5 Sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial assumptions (continued)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied when calculating the
employee benefit obligations.

The methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis for 2022 and 2021 presented
above are consistent.

23.6 Expected maturity analysis

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4.4 years (2021: 6.7 years). The
expected maturity analysis of employee benefit obligations is as follows:

Less than 1-2
a year years 2-5years 5 -10 years Total
31 December 2022 19,307 14,937 32,308 40,822 107,374
31 December 2021 9,560 11,567 29,621 48,976 99,724

24 Trade and other payables

Note 2022 2021

Trade payables 469,330 901,069
Advance from customers 37,504 47,443
Salaries and benefits 47,986 45,513
Accrued expenses 56,013 43,416
VAT payable 45,773 41,862
Gift cards 22,129 25,088
Due to related parties 27 673 818
Others 10,747 10,205
690,155 1,115,414

The carrying value of deferred revenue from gift cards and advances from customers on the
consolidated statement of financial position represents unsatisfied performance obligations at the end
of the reporting period. Advances from customers principally represent orders awaiting shipment and
the amounts are recognised as revenue upon satisfaction of related performance obligation.

25 Zakat and income tax matters

The Group is subject to zakat and income tax. In accordance with the regulations of the ZATCA, zakat
is payable at 2.578% on all components of the zakat base except for adjusted net profit for the year
which is subject to zakat at the rate of 2.5%. The Group, along with its Saudi Arabian subsidiaries, files
its zakat return on consolidated basis, except for UCFS which files its separate zakat return on a stand-
alone basis since zakat is payable at 2.578% of zakat base subject to a minimum and maximum capping
/ threshold of 4 times or 8 times, respectively of profit before zakat, in accordance with the ZATCA
regulations. The income tax provision is related to eXtra Oman where the income tax is calculated at a
tax rate of 15% as per Omani income tax regulations.
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25 Zakat and income tax matters (continued)

25.1 Components of approximate zakat base

The significant components of the zakat base under the applicable zakat regulations principally
comprise shareholders’ equity, provisions at the beginning of year, long-term borrowings and adjusted
net profit, less deduction for the net book value of property and equipment, investments and certain
other items.

25.2 Provision for zakat and income tax

The movement in the zakat and tax provision for the year was as follows:

Zakat Income tax Total
2022
1January 2022 29,321 2,796 32,117
Provision 34,413 1,483 35,896
Payments (23,507) (3,306) (26,813)
31 December 2022 40,227 973 41,200
2021
1January 2021 15,524 3,215 18,739
Provision 27,357 3,168 30,525
Payments (13,560) (3,587) (17,147)
31 December 2021 29,321 2,796 32,117

25.3 Status of final assessments

The Group has obtained zakat certificates from the ZATCA for the years through 2021. The ZATCA has
finalized the Group’s zakat assessments for the years through 2010 and years 2014 and 2017.

During 2020, the Group received revised assessments from the ZATCA for the years 2015, 2016 and
2018 claiming additional zakat amounting to Saudi Riyals 1.8 million out of which Saudi Riyals 1.0
million were paid by the Group/ The Group also filed an appeal against the remaining amounts with
ZATCA. Management believes that no further provision is required in these consolidated financial
statements.

During 2021, the Group received assessments from the ZATCA for the years 2019 and 2020 claiming
additional zakat amounting to Saudi Riyals 9.1 million. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group filed an appeal against such assessment with the General Secretariat of Zakat, Tax and Customs
Committees. Management believes that the provisions maintained in these consolidated financial
statements are adequate and no further provision is required.

Assessments for the years 2011 through 2013, and 2021 are currently under review by the ZATCA. Zakat
and income tax assessments for UCFS and eXtra Oman respectively for years since inception are
currently under review by the relevant tax authorities.

26 Segmental information
a) Operating segments

The Group is organised into business units based on factors including distribution method, targeted
customers, products and geographic location.

The Group has two major operating segments namely, ‘Sales and services’ and ‘Consumer finance’. The
Board of Directors of the Group, considered as Chief Operating Decision Maker, review the internal
management reports of each segment at least quarterly for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of performance. All other operating segments that are not reportable are combined under
“Others”.
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26 Segmental information (continued)

a) Operating segments (continued)

The following summary describes the operations of each reportable segment.

Reportable segment

Operation

Sales and services Retail, wholesale, E-commerce, installation and repair services of
electronics products, computers, smartphones and accessories,
extended warranties, gift cards and installment sales.

Consumer finance Consumer financing activities under Murabaha, Tawarruq and

Islamic credit card financing arrangements (Tas’heel).

The segmental information was as follows:

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Total from
Sales and Consumer Intersegment external
services finance Others eliminations customers
Revenue
- Pointin
time 5,485,581 = - - 5,485,581
- Overtime 132,430 416,956 20,033 (23,934) 545,485
5,618,011 416,956 20,033 (23,934) 6,031,066
Net profit 444,099 193,625 193,631 (391,181) 440,174
Salesand Consumer Intersegment
services Finance Others eliminations Total
Total assets 3,132,672 1,612,664 697,868 (1,473,104) 3,970,100
Total liabilities 1,927,513 938,095 215,363 (250,171) 2,830,800
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021
Total from
Salesand Consumer Intersegment external
services Finance Others eliminations customers
Revenue
- Pointin
time 5,395,221 - - - 5,395,221
- Overtime 135,536 300,895 20,985 (19,009) 438,407
5,530,757 300,895 20,985 (19,009) 5,833,628
Net profit 262,611 128,774 6,617 (1,168) 396,834
Salesand Consumer Intersegment
services Finance Others eliminations Total
Total assets 3,224,873 1,257,586 259,587 (1,093,840) 3,648,206
Total liabilities 2,182,755 776,845 5,460 (309,411) 2,655,649
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26 Segmental information (continued)

a) Operating segments (continued)

The Group management uses segment revenue and net profit to measure performance being the most
relevant in evaluating the results of segments.

b) Geographical segments

The geographical information below analyses the Group’s revenue, net profit, total assets and total
liabilities as follows:

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Kingdom of Intersegment
Saudi Arabia Others eliminations Total
Revenue

- Point in time 5,089,576 396,005 - 5,485,581
- Overtime 542,141 27,278 (23,934) 545,485
5,631,717 423,283 (23,934) 6,031,066
Net profit 826,485 4,870 (391,181) 440,174
Total assets 5,171,550 271,654 (1,473,104) 3,970,100
Total liabilities 2,877,080 203,891 (250,171) 2,830,800

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

Kingdom of Intersegment
Saudi Arabia Others eliminations Total
Revenue

- Pointin time 4,967,770 427,451 - 5,395,221
- Overtime 435,945 21,471 (19,009) 438,407
5,403,715 448,922 (19,009) 5,833,628
Net profit 526,712 22,056 (151,934) 396,834
Total assets 4,488,394 253,652 (1,093,840) 3,648,206
Total liabilities 2,761,793 203,267 (309,411) 2,655,649

27 Related party transactions and balances

Related parties comprise the shareholders, directors, associated companies (representing entities
which are directly or indirectly controlled by or under the significant influence of the Company’s
shareholders), and key management personnel. Related parties also include business entities in which
certain directors or senior management have an interest (other related parties). As at 31 December
2022, Al Fozan Holding Company is the major shareholder of the Company with a shareholding of
23.7 % (31 December 2021: 29.7%).
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27 Related party transactions and balances (continued)

(a) Following are the significant transactions entered into by the Group with its related parties:
Nature of transactions Relationship 2022 2021
Sales Major shareholder 360 224

Associated companies 2,298 243
Purchases Associated companies 1,118 4,871
Rental income Associated companies 1,566 1,512
Rent expense Associated companies 2,021 1,776
Other expenses charged by
the Company Associated companies 427 485
Other expenses charged to the
Company Associated companies 641 687
Acquisition of property and
equipment Associated companies 21 -
Shared services provided Associated companies 1,069 1,043

The transactions are based on terms agreed as per underlying agreements between the Group and the
respective related parties.

(b) Key management personnel compensation
2022 2021
Salaries and other employee benefits 19,911 21,179
Board of Directors’ fees 3,631 2,468
23,542 23,647
(c) Due from related parties - associated companies and major shareholder
2022 2021
United Homeware Company 1,167 2,185
Retal Urban Development Company 31 24
Al Fozan Holding Company 16 22
1,214 2,231
(d) Due to related parties - associated companies
2022 2021
Madar Hardware Company 642 787
Al Yassra Trading Company 31 31
673 818

The above balances are receivable/payable based on the terms as per the signed agreements between
the Group and the respective related parties and do not bear any financial charges.
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28 Earnings per share
2022 2021
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company 440,174 396,834

The weighted average number of shares used as the denominator are as follows:

2022 2021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating
basic earnings per share 75,184,219 73,964,764
Adjustment for treasury shares 4,815,781 6,035,236
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating
diluted earnings per share 80,000,000 80,000,000
Earnings per share (Saudi Riyals)
Basic earnings per share 5.85 5.37
Diluted earnings per share 5.50 4.96

As a result of issuance of bonus shares, as also explained in Note 18 to these consolidated financial
statements, the outstanding weighted average number of ordinary shares post the bonus shares
issuance have been used for calculation of basic earnings per share, for all years presented.
Furthermore, the corresponding impact of bonus shares issuance has also been incorporated in the
adjustment for treasury shares used for the calculation of diluted earnings per share, for all years
presented.

29 Employees’ Stock Option Program

The Group has offered certain employees (the “Eligible Employees”) the Option for equity ownership
opportunities to attract and retain Eligible Employees and reward them for their role in achieving the
Group’s long-term goals. The program focuses on both current and future performance and enables
participants to contribute towards the Group’s success.

The program is entirely based on in-kind settlement where the Eligible Employees will receive the
Company’s shares upon completing the vesting period and achieving the performance measures set
under the plan. The eligibility criteria includes a minimum number of years of service in the Group
and maintaining excellent performance rating in addition to certain other factors. The vesting of the
Option is dependent on meeting performance targets set by the Group along with the required period
of stay in service by the Eligible Employees.

Under the terms of the plan, the Options will vest by the end of years from 2021 through 2023. Only
employees that remain in service until the vesting dates of their respective Options, will become

entitled to exercise the Options.

The ESOP is under the supervision of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors.
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29 Employees’ Stock Option Program (continued)

Under the ESOP, Options were granted on 19 September 2018 (“ESOP 2018), 1 January 2020 (“ESOP
2020) and 1 January 2021 (“ESOP 2021”).

The total expense related to the program for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounting to Saudi
Riyals nil (2021: Saudi Riyals 5.3 million) was charged to the employees' benefit expenses with a
corresponding increase in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The following table sets out the movements in share options (number of shares in thousands) during
the year:

Average Average

exercise exercise

price per price per
share option 2022 share option 2021
At 1 January 41.45 2,239 41.02 2,270
Granted during the year - 85.00 30

Forfeited during the year 85.00 (1) 45.32 (61)

Exercised during the year 40.04 (1,568) - -
Adjustment for capital increase - 223 - -
At 31 December 893 2,239

Average Average

exercise exercise

price per price per
share option 2022 share option 2021
Exercisable at the end of the year 32.27 858 40.04 2,125

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Share Share

Exercise options options

Grant date Expiry date price 2022 2021
19 September 2018 December 2027 40.04 743 2,125
1January 2020 June 2028 62.25 115 86
1January 2021 December 2028 85.00 35 28
Total 893 2,239

The fair value per Option is estimated at the grant date using the Black Scholes Merton pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain employees of the Company exercised their options
awarded under the Group’s Employees’ Stock Option Program (ESOP) during 2018 and purchased 1.2
million shares of the Company at an average exercise price of Saudi Riyals 40.04 per share. The Group
settled such obligations under the ESOP by utilizing the treasury shares held.
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29 Employees’ Stock Option Program (continued)

ESOP 2021 ESOP 2020 ESOP 2018

Inputs to the model:

Dividend Yield (%) 5 5 5
Expected Volatility (%) 37 32.05 31.9
Risk Free Interest Rate (%) 1.9 2.13 3.23
Contractual Life of Share Options (Years) 8.0 8.5 9.3
Share Price (Saudi Riyals) at Grant Date 85.0 74.7 48.05
Share Price (Saudi Riyals) at Grant Date (Adjusted for

Capital increase) N/A 62.25 40.04
Exercise Price (Saudi Riyals) at Grant Date 85.0 74.7 48.05
Exercise Price (Saudi Riyals) at Grant Date (Adjusted

for Capital increase) N/A 62.25 40.04
Exercise Price (Saudi Riyals) at Grant Date (if

additional performance target met) N/A - -
Fair Value per Option 18.1 13.7 9.6
Fair Value per Option (Adjusted for Capital increase) N/A 11.4 8
Fair Value per Option (Adjusted for Capital increase

and modified grant terms) N/A 13.4 9.4
Remaining Contractual Life (Years) 7.0 6.5 6

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not
necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the Options is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

30 Financial risk management
30.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including the effects of changes in market
risk (including currency risk, profit risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Risk management is carried
out by the management under policies approved by the Risk and Credit Management Committee of
the Board of Directors.

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial
statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Risk and Credit Management Committee is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks - currency risk, profit
rate risk and price risk.

@) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group's transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals, United States Dollars (USD),
United Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED), Omani Riyal (RO), Bahraini Dinar (BD), Canadian Dollars
(CAD), Egyptian Pounds (EGP) and Euros (EUR). Since Saudi Riyal, AED, RO and BD are directly or
indirectly pegged, management of the Group believes that the currency risk for the financial
instruments related to AED, USD, RO and BD is not significant.

The fluctuation in exchange rates against Euro, AED, EGP and CAD are monitored on a continuous
basis. Quantitative data regarding the Group’s exposure to currency risk, expressed in Saudi Riyals,
arising from currencies that are not pegged to USD was as follows:

EGP EUR CAD
31 December 2022
Trade and other liabilities 27,675 163 -
Total 27,675 163 -
EGP EUR CAD
31 December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents - 8 -
Trade and other liabilities - 622 134
Total - 630 134

The impact of reasonably possible change in the exchange rates on the Group’s net profit before zakat
and tax is not considered to be material.

(i) Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the uncertainty of future earnings and expenses resulting from fluctuations in profit
rates. The risk arises when there is a mismatch in the assets and liabilities which are subject to profit
rate adjustment within a specified period. The most important source of such risk is the Group's
financing activities and long-term borrowings. As at the consolidated statement of financial position
date, the Group has profit bearing financial assets of Saudi Riyals 1,565.1 million (31 December 2021:
Saudi Riyals 1,213.3 million). However, the profit rates have been agreed with the respective customers
upon inception of the Islamic financing contracts. Further, the Group also has variable profit bearing
financial liabilities of Saudi Riyals 1,1179.1 million (31 December 2021: Saudi Riyals 685.8 million) and
had the profit rate varied by 1% with all the other variables held constant, total comprehensive income
/loss for the year would have been approximately Saudi Riyals 12.6 million (31 December 2021: Saudi
Riyals 5.6 million) higher / lower, as a result of lower / higher finance cost on variable rate
borrowings.

The Group’s trade receivables and payables carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate

risk since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in
market interest rates.
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk

The risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are
not exposed to price risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from investment in Islamic financing contracts,
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Credit risk on related parties is considered minimal as management monitors and reconciles amounts
due from related parties on a regular basis and recoverability is not considered to be doubtful.

The Group has established credit policies and procedures that are considered appropriate and
commensurate with the nature and size of the respective financial assets. The management analyses
credit risk into the following categories of financial assets:

1) Investment in Islamic financing contracts

Investment in Islamic financing contracts is generally exposed to significant credit risk. Therefore, the
Group has established procedures to manage credit exposure including evaluation of customers' credit
worthiness, formal credit approvals and assigning credit limits to avoid undue concentration of risks.

The overall decision to lend to a particular customer is based on the following key parameters:

e Dual credit score i.e. SIMAH and internal application scoring system;
e  Minimum income level and maximum debt burden of the borrower; and
¢ Loan repayment history with other financial institutions sourced from SIMAH.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk since it enters into Islamic
Financing Contracts with individual customers only. At the inception of the contract, internal credit
risk ratings are allocated to each exposure. These credit risk grades are defined using a variety of
qualitative and quantitative factors including income levels, employment segment, nationality etc.

A significant number of customers are Government sector employees. The Group generally receives
repayments through variable channels such as SADAD and bank transfers. The Group has approved
collection policies and procedures establishing a collection strategy to follow up with the delinquent
customers. In order to monitor exposure to credit risk, reports are reviewed by the Risk and Credit
Management Committee on a quarterly basis. Furthermore, the Group has also strengthened its legal
department in order to be actively involved in the collection process of delinquent customers. An
allowance for ECL is maintained at a level which, in the judgment of management, is adequate to
provide for potential losses that can be reasonably anticipated.

63



UNITED ELECTRONICS COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 Financial risk management (continued)

30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

) Investment in Islamic financing contracts (continued)

The following tables sets out information about the credit quality of investment in Islamic financing
contracts.

(a) Stage-wise analysis of gross carrying amounts as at 31 December, in comparison with internal
credit risk rating assigned at the inception of the respective contracts. The amounts in the table

represent gross carrying amounts.

Under- Non-
Performing performing performing
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
31 December 2022
Internal credit risk
ratings
Low risk 829,199 8,413 28,442 866,054
Medium risk 677,160 10,989 43,467 731,616
High risk 627,751 14,410 92,140 734,301
2,134,110 33,812 164,049 2,331,971
Under- Non-
Performing performing performing
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
31 December 2021
Internal credit risk
ratings
Low risk 713,653 4,839 18,393 736,885
Medium risk 643,238 14,772 80,307 738,317
High risk 364,820 6,649 23,918 395,387
1,721,711 26,260 122,618 1,870,589
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30 Financial risk management (continued)

30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1) Investment in Islamic financing contracts (continued)
Measurement of ECL

The Group applies the IFRS 9 general approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a 12
month or lifetime expected loss allowance as applicable for investment in Islamic financing contracts.
The Group’s ECL model is sensitive to macroeconomic variables such as expected movements of oil
prices and unemployment scenario weightings. Management evaluates changes in such
macroeconomic factors on a periodic basis and has recognised the corresponding impact on the
calculation of ECL as at 31 December 2022.

The assessment of credit risk in the net investment in Islamic financing receivables requires further
estimations of credit risk using ECL which is derived by Probability of Default (“PD”), Exposure at
Default (“EAD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD”).

The Group measures an ECL at a contract level considering the EAD, PD, LGD and discount rates. PD
estimates are estimates at a certain date, based on the term structures as provided below. For LGD
estimates, the Group uses present value of recoveries for loss accounts adjusted by the forward-looking
information and further adjusts it in accordance with the Basel guidelines for investment in tawarruq
financing contracts. EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount
allowed under the contract i.e. contractual repayments. Such financing contracts are not collateralised.
For discounting, the Group has used each contract's effective profit rate.

The Group's management believes that adequate ECL allowance has been made, where required to
address the credit risk. Also see Note 15.

(a) Generating the term structure of PD

PD measures the estimated likelihood of default over a time period. PD has been calculated as a
probability that an exposure will move to more than 30 days past due in the next 12 months or over the
remaining lifetime of the obligation. “Through the cycle” default rates are calculated, which are later
converted to Point-in-time PD using scalar factors, by incorporating forward-looking information. For
credit cards, the Company has used loss rates driven from historical data of other Islamic financing
products, considering unavailability of extensive historical data.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, management considers the ‘days past due’ analysis of each
exposure and certain other qualitative factors such as monitoring the forward-looking information
about financial difficulties faced by private sector employers of the customrers and nationalization
targets for specific industry groups etc. Management considers such analysis to be an effective and
efficient measure of monitoring significant increase in credit risk, without undue cost and effort, as it
enters into Islamic Financing Contracts with individual customers only.
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30 Financial risk management (continued)

30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

@) Investment in Islamic financing contracts (continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

(o) Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk
of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL.
Based on an extensive exercise carried out by the management, it had concluded that the crude oil price
was the macroeconomic factor with the highest correlation to the historical collection and default
trends. The Group measures the ECL as either a probability-weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1) or a
probability-weighted lifetime ECL (Stage 2 and 3). These probability weighted ECLs are determined by
running each scenario through the relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario
weightings of 30%, 40% and 30% for “upturn”, “baseline” and “downturn” scenarios respectively.
Management updates the inputs with respect to macroeconomic factors to their ECL model on a
quarterly basis based on the latest available information. As at 31 December 2022, the crude oil price
incorporated in the upturn, baseline and downturn scenarios was United States Dollars (“USD”) 97.5,
USD 88.2 and USD 69.7 per barrel respectively (equivalent to Saudi Riyals 365.6, 330,7 and 261.4 per
barrel respectively), which contributed to determination of the overall scalar factor used. Furthermore,
changes in unemployment statistics are also used in determination of the overall scalar factor used to
incorporate the impact of forward-looking information to the ECL computation.

@ Changes in assumptions including incorporation of forward-looking information

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there have been no significant changes to the underlying
methodology used for determination of ECL.

Starting 2022, the Group, upon obtaining approval from the Risk and Credit Management Committee,
has used present value of historic recoveries from loss accounts to arrive at the LGD for Murabaha
portfolio. Previously, the LGD was adjusted with reference to the Basel guidelines. The LGD used for
Tawarruq portfolio continues to be adjusted by the Basel guidelines, considering that the Group has
insufficient historical information as at the balance sheet date. The change in LGD for Murabaha
portfolio resulted in a decrease of Saudi Riyals 3.8 million, in the ECL allowance for the year ended 31
December 2022. Management believes that it is impracticable to assess the impact of this change in
LGD for the future reporting periods.
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30 Financial risk management (continued)

30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade and other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables.

The aging analysis for trade receivables is as follows:

2022 2021

Current 37,835 17,628
0-90 days past due 19,399 28,106
91-180 days past due 1,296 190
181-365 days past due 31 1,266
Above 365 days past due 1,826 1,777
60,387 48,967

The average credit period on sales of goods is 30-90 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group has a credit policy set in place to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines the credit limits. These procedures are reviewed and updated on
an ongoing basis. At 31 December 2022, 60% of trade receivables were due from 1 customer (2021:
74% from 1 customer). Management believes that this concentration of credit risk is mitigated as the
customer has established track record of regular and timely payments.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 18 months before 31
December 2022 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP
and the inflation rate to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group considers any trade receivables overdue for more than a year to be in default and are
accordingly fully provided for. The loss rates for the other ageing buckets are not significant. The
identified ECL on trade and other receivables is trivial and accordingly, no ECL has been recognised by
the Group.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of
greater than 365 days past due. Where receivables have been written off, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made,
these are recognised in the profit or loss.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are also not

exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the
carrying amount of each receivable.
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(it) Net investment in finance lease

Net investment in finance lease is stated at amortised cost. The Company uses simplified approach
under IFRS 9 to calculate the ECL allowance. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ECL allowance on net
investment in finance lease was immaterial.

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company uses “low credit risk” practical expedient for the cash and cash equivalents with the
assumption that the credit risk on such financial instruments has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, and therefore the ECL is estimated at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
for a period of 12 months.

These are placed with banks having minimum credit ratings of BBB or better, and therefore are not
subject to significant credit risk. The stated rating is as per the global bank ratings by Moody’s
Investors Service. Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ECL allowance on cash at bank was immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses including the servicing of financial obligations. In addition, the Group has access to credit
facilities as made available.

Total unused credit facilities available to the Group as at 31 December 2022 were approximately Saudi
Riyals 1,947.9 million (2021: Saudi Riyals 914.9 million) principally representing short-term loans,
long-term loans, letters of credit and letters of guarantee.

Cash flow forecasting is performed by management which monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does
not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal ratio targets.
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30 Financial risk management (Continued)

30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the Group’s financial liabilities into the relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining contractual maturity period at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their

carrying amounts, as the ultimate amounts to be realised is not significantly different from the
carrying amounts.

Less than 1-2 Above 5

one year Years 3-5 years years Total
31 December 2022
Trade and other payables 555,428 - - - 555,428
Borrowings 482,621 226,660 322,514 122,799 1,154,594
Lease liabilities 82,200 166,659 218,903 481,250 949,012
Total 1,120,249 393,319 541,417 604,049 2,659,034
31 December 2021
Trade and other payables 930,590 - - - 930,590
Borrowings 181,334 357,276 173,516 4,004 716,130
Lease liabilities 64,298 143,887 197,326 449,644 855,155
Total 1,176,222 501,163 370,842 453,648 2,501,875
(d) Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

. maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus borrowings, which is analysed as
follows:

2022 2021
Total equity 1,139,300 992,557
Borrowings 1,179,051 685,798
Total 2,318,351 1,678,355
Gearing ratio 50.86% 40.9%
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30 Financial risk management (Continued)
30.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Capital risk management (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has availed short term Murabaha facilities for
working capital management which have an outstanding amount of Saudi Riyals 390.4 million (2022:
Saudi Riyals 20 million) resulting in the variation of the gearing ratio.

The management and Board of Directors do not consider lease liabilities for the purpose of calculating
its gearing ratio.

Under the terms of certain borrowing facilities of UCFS, UCFS is required to maintain a minimum
ratio of 1.2 is to 1 of earnings before interest, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) to Debt
Service Ratio. As at 31 December 2022, UCFS’ of debt service to EBITDA was 1.6 (31 December 2021:
2.3), in compliance with the requirements of the minimum ratio as set out by the commercial banks.

(e) Fair value estimation

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of the Group’s financial instruments are estimated
to approximate their carrying values since the financial instruments are short term in nature, carry
interest rates which are based on prevailing market interest rates and are expected to be realized at
their current carrying values within twelve months from the date of the consolidated statement of
financial position. The fair values of the non-current financial instruments are estimated to
approximate their carrying values as these carry interest rates which are based on prevailing market
interest rates.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

0 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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30 Financial risk management (Continued)
30.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

)] Net debt reconciliation

The net debt of the Group at 31 December is as follows:

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents (146,669) (173,158)
Lease liabilities 601,574 552,045
Borrowings 1,179,051 685,798
Total 1,633,956 1,064,685
The Group’s net debt reconciliation is as follows:

1 January Cash flows Others 31 December
2022
Cash and cash equivalents (173,158) 26,489 - (146,669)
Lease liabilities 552,045 (86,336) 135,865 601,574
Borrowings 685,798 487,120 6,133 1,179,051
Net debt 1,064,685 1,633,956

1 January Cash flows Others 31 December
2021
Cash and cash equivalents (184,763) 11,605 - (173,158)
Lease liabilities 535,960 (86,848) 102,933 552,045
Borrowings 340,000 343,858 1,940 685,798
Net debt 691,197 1,064,685
31 Financial instruments

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
categorized as held at amortized cost. Management believes that the fair values of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values since the financial
instruments are short term in nature, carry profit rates which are based on prevailing market profit
rates and are expected to be realized at their current carrying values within twelve months from the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position. The fair values of the non-current financial
instruments are also not expected to be materially different to their carrying values as these carry

profit rates which are based on prevailing market profit rates.
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31 Financial instruments (continued)

The breakdown of these financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

2022 2021
Assets carried at amortised cost as per statement of
financial position
Investment in Islamic financing contracts 1,577,040 1,213,028
Trade and other receivables 83,994 73,099
Cash and cash equivalents 146,628 173,158
Total 1,807,662 1,459,285
2022 2021
Liabilities carried at amortised cost as per
statement of financial position
Trade and other payables 551,013 930,590
Borrowings 1,179,050 685,798
Lease liabilities 601,574 601,519
Total 2,331,637 2,217,907

For the purpose of the financial instruments disclosure, non-financial assets and non-financial
liabilities amounting to Saudi Riyals 49.8 million and Saudi Riyals 159.2 million, respectively (2021:
Saudi Riyals 48.7 million and Saudi Riyals 184.8 million, respectively) have been excluded from trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables, respectively.

32 Restatement

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company identified that it had not separately presented
income from Islamic financing contracts for the year ended 31 December 2021, on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in accordance with the requirements of
the applicable financial reporting framework. Such error was corrected and income from Islamic
financing contracts has been separately presented on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Such restatement has had no impact on the total revenue, gross profit,
profit before zakat and income tax, net profit for the year or basic and diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021 and the consolidated statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2021.

33 Dividends

The Company’s Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 7 March 2022, resolved to distribute cash
dividends of Saudi Riyals 2.5 per share, amounting to Saudi Riyals 150.0 million for the second half of
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2021: Saudi Riyals 120.0 million for the second half of the year
ended 31 December 2020), which were fully paid during the year ended 31 December 2022. Such
dividends were also approved by the shareholders of the Company in their general assembly meeting
held on 12 May 2022.

The Company’s Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 8 August 2022, resolved to distribute cash
dividends of Saudi Riyal 2.5 per share, amounting to Saudi Riyals 150.0 million. For the first half of
the year ending 31 December 2022 (2021: Saudi Riyals 120.0 million for the first half of the year ended
31 December 2021), which were fully paid during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Dividends presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity are net of dividends on
treasury shares.
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34 Contingencies and commitments
1) At 31 December 2022, the Group was contingently liable for bank guarantees and letters of
credit issued in the normal course of business amounting to Saudi Riyals 1,031.1 million (2021:

Saudi Riyals 563.7 million).

(i) As at 31 December 2022, there were no significant capital expenditure or other commitments
(2021: Saudi Riyals 7.1 million).
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